Meeting papers

Pension Board
Thursday 7 March 2019 at 10.00 am
Meeting Room 5 - Shire Hall, Gloucester

Pension Board

Thursday 7 March 2019 at 10.00 am

Meeting Room 5 - Shire Hall, Gloucester

AGENDA

1

APOLOGIES

Andrea Griffiths

2

MINUTES OF THE PREVIOUS MEETING (Pages 1 - 6)

Andrea Griffiths

To confirm the minutes of the Pension Board meeting held on the
17th October 2018.
3

PENSION FUND RISK REGISTER (Pages 7 - 16)

Mark Spilsbury

The Board is asked to note the report.
4

PENSIONS CONTRACT DECISIONS (Pages 17 - 28)

Mark Spilsbury

That the Board notes the two contract decisions.
5

PENSIONS ADMINISTRATION PERFORMANCE (Pages 29 - 30)

Mark Spilsbury

The Board is asked to note the report.
6

DRAFT GUIDANCE ON LGPS ASSET POOLING (Pages 31 - 42)

Mark Spilsbury

That the Board consider whether there are any points that it wishes
to feed back on the draft statutory guidance on asset pooling.
7

BRUNEL ANNUAL REPORT (Pages 43 - 118)

Mark Spilsbury

The Board is asked to note the report.
8

QUARTERLY PERFORMANCE TO END OF DECEMBER 2018 (Pages
119 - 134)

The Board is asked to note the report.
9

EXCLUSION OF THE PRESS & PUBLIC

The Pension Board to resolve that, in accordance with Section 100
A (4) of the Local Government Act 1972, the public to be excluded

Mark Spilsbury

from the meeting for the following agenda items because it is likely
that if members of the public were present at the meeting there
would be disclosure to them of exempt information as defined in
Paragraph 3 and 7a of Part 1 of Schedule 12 A to the Act, and that
the public interest in withholding this information could outweigh the
public interest in disclosing the information to the public.
10

EXEMPT MINUTES (Pages 135 - 142)

Andrea Griffiths

To confirm the exempt minutes of the Pension Board held on the
17th October 2018.
11

REPORT OF INDEPENDENT ADVISOR TO THE FUND (Pages 143 154)

Mark Spilsbury

The Board is asked to note the report.
Membership – Cllr Nigel Moor ,Annette Benson (Gloucestershire University), Sean Collins (Head
of Pensions, Oxfordshire County Council), Owen Shaw (Member representative) and Jon Topping
(Head of Finance, Gloucester City Council)
(a)

DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST – Members requiring advice or clarification about
whether to make a declaration of interest are invited to contact the Monitoring Officer
(Jane Burns 01452 328472 /fax: 425149/ e-mail: Jane.Burns@gloucestershire.gov.uk)
prior to the start of the meeting.

(b)

INSPECTION OF PAPERS AND GENERAL QUERIES - If you wish to inspect Minutes or
Reports relating to any item on this agenda or have any other general queries about the
meeting, please contact:
Andrea Griffiths, Democratic Services Officer :01452 324206 /fax: 425850/e-mail:
andrea.griffiths@gloucestershire.gov.uk

Please note that photography, filming and audio recording of Council meetings is permitted subject
to the Local Government Access to Information provisions. Please contact Democratic Services (tel
01452 425230) to make the necessary arrangements ahead of the meeting. If you are a member of
the public and do not wish to be photographed or filmed please inform the Democratic Services
Officer on duty at the meeting.
EVACUATION PROCEDURE - in the event of the fire alarms sounding during the meeting please leave as
directed in a calm and orderly manner and go to the assembly point which is outside the main entrance to
Shire Hall in Westgate Street. Please remain there and await further instructions.

Agenda Item 2
PENSION BOARD
PUBLIC MINUTES of the meeting of the Pension Board meeting held at Shire Hall on
Wednesday 17th October 2018.
Present:
Annette Benson
Sean Collins
Cllr Nigel Moor
Owen Shaw
Jon Topping
Officers in
attendance:

Mark Spilbury, Alex Bull and Andrea Griffiths

70. MINUTES
Resolved
The public minutes of the Pension Board meeting held on 16th April 2018 were
agreed as a correct record of the meeting.
71. PENSION FUND RISK REGISTER
Mark Spilsbury, Head of the Pension Fund, gave an update on the Pension Fund
Risk Register. The Risk Register was last reviewed by the Pension Committee at its
meeting on the 7th September 2018 and by the Pension Board in March 2018. It
was confirmed that the points raised at each meeting had all been addressed.
The Pension Board noted that since its last meeting the following amendments had
been made:
-

F3: Fall in risk-free returns on Government bonds, leading to rise in value placed on
liabilities. The Residual risk score had increased due to falling bond yields.

-

F8: Orphaned employers give rise to added costs for the Fund. New Period
Comments: Two high risk employers without guarantors would be leaving the fund
between March 2018 and January 2019 reducing this risk. However, since one
large employer remained in this category the risk has not changed.

-

F9: New Risk: Financial loss experienced during the transitioning of assets to the
new Brunel Portfolio's. It was noted that £510m had been transitioned to the BPP
passive portfolio's and a full reconciliation had confirmed that all assets transitioned
were as expected.

-

A/R1: Significant additional costs resulting from changes to national pension
requirements and/or HMRC rules e.g. changes arising from public sector pensions
reform, and/or more complex regulations requiring increased administration
resources. It was noted that in order to effectively deal with the increased workload
emanating from the new 2016 CARE scheme, additional pensions officers were
recruited to in the Pension Administration Team during 2016. A further four staff

-1-

Page 1

Minutes subject to their acceptance as a
correct record at the next meeting
members had now been recruited in 2018 to bring the staffing within the Pension
Administration team up to the agreed full establishment funded by the budget.
-

G9: Transition from the current custodian to State Street Bank under the Brunel
Pension Partnership resulting in failings during the transition and/or inadequate
performance reports post transition and/or negative impacts on the final accounts of
the Pension Fund due to failings in the accounting reports received from State
Street Bank. It was noted that no major problems were encountered during the
transition and assets transferred were reconciled back to the detailed records held
by each manager. Satisfactory performance reports were now being provided by
State Street, the key information from which would be included in more detailed
reports being produced by the Brunel Pension Partnership.

In response to a question, it was noted in relation to F8 the term ‘orphaned’ meant
an employer without a guarantor failing financially. The narrative regarding this risk
would be amended to make this clearer (Action – MS)
The Pension Board were pleased to note the Pension Committee had taken on
board its advice relating to the Risk Register.
Resolved
That the report be noted.
72. BUSINESS PLAN 2018/19
Head of the Pension Fund, Mark Spilsbury, gave an update on the key tasks
included within the 2018-19 Business Plan.
The Board were advised of the major targets and milestones for 2018/19, as
detailed on Page 17 of the report.
It was noted that the main budget change between 2017/18 and 2018/19 was a
£328,000 increase in other external costs in relation to Gloucestershire’s
anticipated share of company costs under the Brunel Pension partnership (BPP),
taking the estimated charge to £614,000 in 2018/19. External fund manager fees
were forecasted to remain the same for 2018/19 with the expectation that budget
reductions would arise following BPP becoming fully operational with the selected
managers for the new, pooled portfolios. In terms of external fees, it was explained
that it was more important to have improved performance rather than fee savings.
In response to a question relating to staffing costs and the estimated budget, the
Head of the Pension Fund explained that Gloucestershire’s LGPS was likely to be
within the second lowest quartile in terms of staff, however he was satisfied at this
moment that staffing levels were sufficient.
The Board were advised that the Pension Committee agreed the Business Plan and
received a regular update.

-2-

Page 2

Minutes subject to their acceptance as a
correct record at the next meeting

The Head of the Pension Fund confirmed there were two LGPS training events
available if members of the Pension Board wished to attend, they should contact
him directly to book a place.
Resolved
That the report be noted.
73. EXTERNAL AUDIT FINDINGS REPORT
Mark Spilsbury, Head of the Pension Fund, referred to the audit findings for the
Gloucestershire Pension Fund, including a summary of the key issues affecting the
preparation of the fund’s financial statements for the year ending March 2018.
The Head of the Pension Fund confirmed no material errors had been identified as
requiring amendment in the draft financial statements.
He referred the Board to the minor audit adjustments. These were noted as an
amount of £8.956 million was included within sales proceeds which should have
been included within gains/losses on disposal. It was explained that the accounts
had been changed accordingly. Also, two investments were identified with a value
totalling £3.641 million which were included within level 3 investments and were
deemed to be classified as level 2 investments. Therefore, these were
recategorised in agreement with the External Auditors.
In response to a question regarding when the audit report would be finalised it was
confirmed that this would happen once the auditor had reviewed the Annual Report
for 2017/18.
Resolved
That the report be noted.
74. PENSION ADMINISTRATION REPORT
Mark Spilsbury, Head of the Pension Fund, gave a detailed presentation of the
Pension Administration Performance.
In response to a question, it was noted that four new members of staff had been
recruited with the agreement of the Pension Committee to administer the fund,
which had contributed to the increased performance.
The Board were pleased to note the improving performance and remarked on the
positive efforts made by the team. The Head of the Pension Fund explained there
was further work required, in order to achieve all of the six targets in 2018/19.
The Board were advised that if a hardship case was submitted in the event of a
death grant, then it would be prioritised accordingly. Members requested to know
what the timeframe was in relation to retirements and lump sum payments, officers
agreed to clarify the position. (Action – MS)
-3-

Page 3

Minutes subject to their acceptance as a
correct record at the next meeting

It was noted that in terms of death grants this usually occurred within 8 days after
the receipt of the legal paperwork. However, the team would ensure the funds were
paid to the right person, regardless of the time factor.
A discussion took place relating to any possible scheme changes by Government,
officers added there were no further changes to report at this stage.
Resolved
That the report be noted.
75. PENSION FUND ANNUAL REPORT
Mark Spilsbury, Head of the Pension Fund informed the Board that the Annual
Report was presented to the Pension Committee at its September meeting. It was
noted that any suggested amendments or comments relating to the Annual Report
were to be submitted to Officers by 21st September 2018. The Board were advised
that no amendments were submitted, therefore the report was being printed ready
for distribution in December.
Resolved
That the update be received.
76. INVESTMENT PERFORMANCE REPORT
Mark Spilsbury, Head of the Pension Fund, presented an overview of market
valuations and an update on the performance of the Gloucestershire Local
Government Pension Scheme, (LGPS), as at 30 June 2018. It was noted that the
performance report had been produced by State Street.
It was noted that the Pension Committee had requested the previous reporting
summary of performance, as it was deemed to be more user friendly. The Board
concurred that the chart on page 53 of the report was difficult to understand.
The report was sub-divided into four areas, detailing information on i) Manager
Performance; ii) Asset Allocation; iii) Market Values, and iv) Cash Position. The
Committee discussed the report in detail.
The Board discussed in detail the difference between performance target and the
benchmark. The Head of the Pension Fund advised the Board that GCC LGPS
would move to the same methodology as other LGPS, in terms of monitoring
performance. It was noted that in terms of benchmark performance WAMCO and
BlackRock Global Equity had continued to perform adequately whilst Hermes had
performed exceptionally well over a longer time period.
The Head of Pension Fund informed members that the fund had underperformed
against its target. However, the level of performance was disappointing but within
-4-

Page 4

Minutes subject to their acceptance as a
correct record at the next meeting

risk tolerances. It was noted that a summary report, including the benchmark and
performance target and the Brunel performance report would be presented at the
next Pension Committee meeting, including a one page supporting paper on
performance net of fees.
One area of concern that had emerged from the report had been the
underperformance of the Aberdeen Standard Investment mandate. It was noted
that the Pension Committee had called in Standard Life managers on various
occasions to question them over their poor performance. The Head of the Pension
Fund explained that under Brunel there would be flat fees and no performance
related fees, which should result in a saving.
Members agreed that the report had provided a useful insight into the performance
of the fund. The report was noted without further comment or feedback to the
Pension Committee.
Resolved
That the performance report was noted.
77. EXCLUSION OF PRESS AND PUBLIC
Resolved
That In accordance with Section 100 A (4) of the Local Government Act 1972,
it was resolved that the public should be excluded from the meeting for the
following agenda items because it was likely that if members of the public
were present at the meeting for these items there would be disclosure to
them of exempt information as defined in Paragraph 3 of Part 1 of Schedule
12 A to the Act and that the public interest in withholding the information
outweighed the public interest in disclosing the information to the public.
78. EXEMPT MINUTES
It was noted that the member attendance needed to be amended.
Resolved
That the exempt minutes of the Pension Board meeting held on 16th April
2018 were agreed as a record of the meeting, subject to the attendance being
amended.
79. INDEPENDENT ADVISOR REPORT
Mark Spilsbury, Head of the Pension Fund gave an overview of the report, which
was tailored for the Pension Committee. The Board agreed the report was very
informative.
Resolved
-5-

Page 5

Minutes subject to their acceptance as a
correct record at the next meeting

That the report be noted.
80. PIRC ANNUAL REVIEW
Mark Spilsbury, Head of the Pension Fund presented the report in detail. The
Board took assurance from the report and felt that it acted a peer review.
Resolved
That the report be noted.
81. BRUNEL PENSION PARTNERSHIP
Mark Spilsbury, Head of the Pension Fund, gave a verbal update on the Brunel
Pension Partnership.
Resolved
That the verbal update be received.
82. ANY OTHER BUSINESS
Members were requested to email request to officers if they had any areas to be
included on future agendas.

CHAIRPERSON

The meeting concluded at 13.40 pm

-6-

Page 6

Agenda Item 3
Pension Board
7th March 2019
Review of the
Pension Fund Risk Register
Report of the Strategic Finance Director
The attached Risk Register reflects the risks relating to the Pension Fund and
indicates the significance of each risk.
As per previous reports the significance of individual risks is measured by a
scoring system which multiplies the likelihood of the occurrence with the
potential impact of such an occurrence. Both “likelihood” and “impact” are
scored 1 – 5 and after multiplying both numbers together, the higher the
product, the higher the risk.
Risk Score Range
1 to 6
7 to 12
13 to 25

Risk Category
Low
Medium
High

The attached Risk Register shows each risk, scored before and after controls
are in place (i.e. the inherent and residual risks).
The risks are referenced as follows:
Financial Risks (F)
Funding / Demography Risks (F/D)
Administration / Regulatory Risks (A/R)
Governance Risks (G)
Since the risk register was last considered by the Pension Board in October
2018 and the Pension Committee in November 2018 a new risk A/R 1.2 has
been added in relation to the resourcing of the Pension Administration Team,
as requested at the last meeting of the Pension Committee.
A number of other changes have also been made in relation to risks F1, F4,
F5, F8, F9, A/R5 and G6. All of the changes made in relation to these risks
are highlighted in yellow in the updated risk register.
Recommendation
That the Board notes the risk register.
Contact Officer
Mark Spilsbury - Head of Pension Fund (01452 328920)

Page 7

This page is intentionally left blank

Gloucestershire LGPS Pension Fund Risk Register
1e

F1

Page 9

F2

F3

F4

F5

Risk or Opportunity Description

Fund assets fail to deliver returns in line with the
anticipated returns underpinning valuation of
liabilities over the long-term

Inappropriate long-term investment strategy.

Fall in risk-free returns on Government bonds,
leading to rise in value placed on liabilities.

Increasing Pension Fund deficit

Active investment manager under-performance
relative to benchmark.

PENSION FUND RISK REGISTER UPDATED IN JANUARY 2019 FOR CONSIDERATION BY THE PENSION BOARD IN MARCH 2019

Benefits of taking opportunity or
Consequences if risk occurs and
related objectives

The achievement of fully funded
pension liabilities over the long term

The achievement of fully funded
pension liabilities over the long term

The achievement of fully funded
pension liabilities over the long term

The achievement of fully funded
pension liabilities over the long term

Owner

Head of Pension
Fund

Head of Pension
Fund

Head of Pension
Fund

Head of Pension
Fund

Maximising investment returns to help Head of Pension
the Fund achieve its funding target
Fund

Inherent Risk
or Opportunity
L/V I/B
R Controls

4

4

4

4

4

4

Only anticipate long-term return on a
relatively prudent basis to reduce risk of
under-performing.
Assets invested on the basis of specialist
advice, in a suitably diversified manner
across asset classes, geographies,
managers, etc.
16
Analyse progress at three yearly
valuations for all employers.
Inter-valuation roll-forward of liabilities
between valuations at whole Fund level.
Actuarial Review on a like for like basis
has confirmed a strong deficit recovery
plan.

4

Regular monitoring of Fund's cash flow
with actuarial estimates of future cash
flow position.
Overall
investment strategy options including
16 diversification considered as an integral
part of the funding strategy. Use of asset
liability modelling. Actuarial Review on a
like for like basis has confirmed a strong
deficit recovery plan.

3

Stabilisation modelling at whole Fund
level allows for the probability of this
within a longer term context.
Inter-valuation monitoring, as above.
12
Some investment in bonds helps to
mitigate this risk. Actuarial Review on a
like for like basis has confirmed a strong
deficit recovery plan.

3

Actuarial review via Triennial Valuation
and regular update reports.
Regular consideration by Pension
Committee on manager performance
12
relative to funding assumptions, funding
position and funding strategy. Actuarial
Review on a like for like basis has
confirmed a strong deficit recovery plan.

3

Quarterly investment monitoring analyses
market performance and active managers
relative to their index benchmark.
12
Diversification of investments across
asset classes and across different fund
managers

Residual Risk
or Opportunity
L/V I/B
R

3

2

3

3

3

4

4

3

3

3

12

8

9

9

9

Direction of Travel

Ref

Version: 1d

▲

►

►

►

▲

Category of Risk
or Opportunity
Period Comments / Additional Actions

All risks are
monitored on an
on-going basis.
Date of last
review.

Financial

Due to increased uncertainty regarding
BREXIT and other political risks and
possible negative long term implications,
this risk is continually monitored to
determine whether the likelihood of this
risk materialising needs to be increased.
Following the Brexit vote on 15th January
2019, and in the context of the significant
reduction in the value of the Funds assets
during quarter 4 in 2018, the residual risk
likelihood has now been increased from a
2 to a 3.

16/01/2019

Financial

Phased movement to new allocation is
being undertaken in the context of reducing
exposure to equities whilst maintaining
adequate returns and minimising new
transition costs before the transition into
the Brunel Pension Partnership. A slightly
amended asset allocation to the various
investment portfolio's available under the
BPP was agreed by the Pension
Committee at it'sFebruary 18 meeting.

16/01/2019

Financial

Falling Govt Bond yields is reducing the
discount rate (the level of expected
investment returns) which increases the
value placed on past service liabilities,
which was why the Residual Risk likelihood
score was increased to a 3 in November
2018.

16/01/2019

Financial

Funding deficit reduced at 2016 Fund
Valuation and performance over the last 3
year period exceed the anticipated returns
used as part of the 2016 valuation.

16/01/2019

Financial

Performance in the current portfolio's and
in the new BPP portfolio's will be monitored
against agreed performance targets and
will be reported back to the Committee on
a quarterly basis. However in the context of
the performance in quarter 4 of 2018 the
likelihood of this risk has been increased
from a 2 to a 3.

16/01/2019

Ref

F6

F7

Risk or Opportunity Description

Pay and price inflation significantly more than
anticipated.

Unexpected increase in employer’s contribution
rate

Benefits of taking opportunity or
Consequences if risk occurs and
related objectives

The achievement of fully funded
pension liabilities over the long term

To stabilise changes in employer
contribution rates over the long term

Version: 1d

Owner

Head of Pension
Fund

Head of Pension
Fund

Inherent Risk
or Opportunity
L/V I/B
R Controls

4

4

2

8

3

An explicit stabilisation mechanism has
been agreed for eligible employers as part
of the funding strategy. Other measures
are also in place to limit sudden increases
in contributions.
Obtain information on financial strength of
individual employers. Discuss with
12
employers their ability to absorb rises in
their level of contribution.
Where appropriate mitigate impact
through deficit spreading and phasing in
of contribution rises, with appropriate
security from employers and further
analysis by the Fund’s actuary.

3

The Fund seeks a cessation debt (or
security/guarantor) to minimise the risk of
this happening in the future. At risk
employers are identified and are engaged
in discussions over remedial actions in
12
advance of retirement of all active
members.
If it occurs, the Actuary calculates the
added cost spread pro-rata among all
employers

5

Detailed reconciliation of assets
transferred undertaken by the Finance
and Investments Manager. Detailed report
15 from transition experts commissioned by
the Brunel PP will be produced following
each transition to provide assurance to
clients.

Page 10
F8

F9

Employers without a guarantor fail financially
leaving a deficit with the Fund.

Financial loss experienced during the transitioning
of Assets to the new Brunel Portfolio's

To ensure individual employers in the
Fund are responsible for their own
costs

Head of Pension
Fund

Maximising investment returns to help Head of Pension
the Fund achieve its funding target
Fund

4

3

The focus of the actuarial valuation
process is on real returns on assets, net
of price and pay increases.
Inter-valuation monitoring, as above,
gives early warning.
Some investment in index-linked bonds
also helps to mitigate this risk.
Employers pay for their own salary
awards and should be mindful of the
geared effect on pension liabilities of any
bias in pensionable pay rises towards
longer-serving employees.

Direction of Travel

Gloucestershire LGPS Pension Fund Risk Register

Category of Risk
or Opportunity
Period Comments / Additional Actions

3

2

6

►

Financial

16/01/2019

2

3

6

►

Financial

16/01/2019

Residual Risk
or Opportunity
L/V I/B
R

2

2

3

4

6

8

All risks are
monitored on an
on-going basis.
Date of last
review.

Financial

Two high risk employers without
guarantors will be leaving the fund
between March 2018 and January 2019.
One of these has repaid it's cessation
deficit of around £6m in full. The cessation
deficit for the other employer (who left in
January 2019) is currently being
calculated. Once paid the scores relating
to this risk will be reviewed again.

16/01/2019

New Financial

£510m has been transitioned to the BPP
passive portfolio's and £345m to the BPP
UK Equities active portfolio and a
reconciliation has confirmed that all assets
transitioned as expected.

16/01/2019

►

Ref

F/D1

Risk or Opportunity Description

Pensioners living longer, thus increasing cost to
Fund.

Benefits of taking opportunity or
Consequences if risk occurs and
related objectives

The achievement of fully funded
pension liabilities over the long term

Version: 1d

Owner

Head of Pension
Fund

Inherent Risk
or Opportunity
L/V I/B
R Controls

5

2

Set mortality assumptions with some
allowance for future increases in life
expectancy.
The Fund Actuary has direct access to
the experience of over 50 LGPS funds
which allows early identification of
changes in life expectancy that might in
turn affect the assumptions underpinning
the valuation.
The Fund also sets life expectancy
10
assumptions using ClubVita, which is a
specialised longevity company and
provides life expectancy assumptions
based on the profile of the Fund’s own
membership.
Administering Authority encourage any
employers concerned at costs to promote
later retirement culture. Each 1 year rise
in the average age at retirement would
save roughly 5% of pension costs.

Residual Risk
or Opportunity
L/V I/B
R

3

2

6

Direction of Travel

Gloucestershire LGPS Pension Fund Risk Register

Category of Risk
or Opportunity
Period Comments / Additional Actions

►

Financial

Page 11
F/D2

Maturing Fund – i.e. proportion of actively
contributing employees declines relative to retired
employees leading to the possibility of there not
being sufficient liquid funds available to pay
liabilities as they fall due.

Efficient management of the Fund by
the Administering Authority, ensuring Head of Pension
it's responsibilities are met, while costs Fund
are minimised

4

3

Continue to monitor at each valuation,
seeking monetary amounts rather than %
of pay. Between valuations regularly
monitor level of active members on both a
12
total Fund basis and by individual
employer. Regularly monitor how cash
flow positive the Fund is. Regularly review
investment strategy.

2

3

6

►

Financial

All risks are
monitored on an
on-going basis.
Date of last
review.

16/01/2019

The Fund commissioned Hymans
Robertson to undertake cash flow
modelling based on the following three
scenarios:
Scenario 1 – cash flows projections based
on 2016 valuation membership data,
Scenario 2 – cash flows projections based
on 2016 valuation membership data, with a
20% reduction in actives, Scenario 3 - with
a 40% reduction in active members. This
modelling indicated that the fund will
remain cashflow positive until 2033 under
scenario1, to 2026 under scenario 2 and
would immediately become casflow
negative under scenario 3. Given that
active membership in the Gloucestershire
scheme is still increasing slightly it is felt
that scenario 1 is the most likely outcome
for the fund.

16/01/2019

Ref

Risk or Opportunity Description

Benefits of taking opportunity or
Consequences if risk occurs and
related objectives

Version: 1d

Owner

A company admitted to the Fund as an admission
body may become financially unviable

Efficient management of the Fund by
the Administering Authority, ensuring Head of Pension
it's responsibilities are met, while costs Fund
are minimised

F/D4

Deteriorating patterns of early retirements

To ensure individual employers in the
Fund are responsible for their own
costs

Head of Pension
Fund

F/D5

Reductions in payroll causing insufficient deficit
recovery payments

To ensure individual employers in the
Fund are responsible for their own
costs

Head of Pension
Fund

F/D3

Page 12

F/D6

F/D7

F/D8

Ill-health retirements significantly more than
anticipated

Adverse effect on the Fund’s investment strategy
and employer contributions if large numbers of
active members are outsourced on a “closed” (to
new entrants) basis

Transfers out of the Fund into DC schemes due to
introduction of "Freedom & Choice" resulting in a
change in funding level

To ensure individual employers in the
Fund are responsible for their own
costs

The achievement of fully funded
pension liabilities over the long term

The achievement of fully funded
pension liabilities over the long term

Head of Pension
Fund

Head of Pension
Fund

Head of Pension
Fund

Direction of Travel

Gloucestershire LGPS Pension Fund Risk Register

Category of Risk
or Opportunity
Period Comments / Additional Actions

3

A transferee admission body will always
have a funding guarantee from the
transferring scheme employer. A
community admission body will only be
admitted to the Fund if they have a
funding guarantee from a scheme
employer with tax raising powers. A surety
12 bond to cover the cost of paying pensions
early if the company goes into liquidation
is also generally required by the scheme
employer to cover the potential risk of the
admitted body becoming insolvent and the
value of this surety or bond is reviewed
regularly to ensure it provides adequate
cover for the financial risks involved

3

3

9

►

Financial

16/01/2019

3

Employers are charged the extra cost of
non ill-health retirements following each
12 individual decision.
Employer ill health retirement experience
is monitored, and insurance is an option.

2

3

6

►

Financial

16/01/2019

3

Require employers to pay sums due for
deficit recovery contributions as a fixed
12
monetary amount rather than being
expressed as a % of pay.

2

3

6

►

Financial

16/01/2019

3

Monitoring of each employer’s ill-health
experience on an ongoing basis. The
employer may be charged additional
12 contributions if this exceeds the ill-health
assumption built in. Ill health insurance is
available to be purchased by individual
employers

2

3

6

►

Financial

16/01/2019

9

Take advice from the Fund actuary on the
likely impact this will have on Fund
investment out performance assumptions
and employer contributions. Monitor levels
of outsourcings on a “closed” basis and
advise employers of implications so these
are taken into account when they consider
the business case for an outsourcing.
Regularly review investment strategy and
strategic asset allocation.

2

3

6

►

Financial

9

Taken advice from the Fund actuary on
the proportion of the Fund's active and
deferred members aged 55 or over and
the maximum exposure of the Fund to
these transfers, split between active and
deferred members. Considered impact on
funding level given different possible
levels of take up from active and deferred
members.

2

2

4

►

Financial

Inherent Risk
or Opportunity
L/V I/B
R Controls

4

4

4

4

3

3

3

3

Residual Risk
or Opportunity
L/V I/B
R

No significant impact to date, but the risk
will continue to be monitored on a regular
basis.

All risks are
monitored on an
on-going basis.
Date of last
review.

16/01/2019

16/01/2019

Ref

Risk or Opportunity Description

Significant additional costs resulting from changes
to national pension requirements and/or HMRC
A/R1.1 rules e.g. changes arising from public sector
pensions reform, and/or more complex regulations
requiring increased administration resources.

Benefits of taking opportunity or
Consequences if risk occurs and
related objectives

Page 13

A/R3

Owner

Efficient management of the Fund by
the Administering Authority, ensuring Head of Pension
it's responsibilities are met, while costs Fund
are minimised

Experience indicates that intervention
Under resourcing of Pension Administration staff
by the Pensions Regulator has major
resulting in a deterioration of performance against
A/R 1.2
implications in terms of increased
key performance indicators and/or intervention from
workload and/or adverse financial
the Pensions Regulator.
implications.

A/R2

Version: 1d

Head of Pension
Fund

Efficient management of the Fund by
Failure to collect and account for contributions from the Administering Authority, ensuring Head of Pension
employers and employees on time
it's responsibilities are met, while costs Fund
are minimised

Loss of funds through fraud or misappropriation

Efficient management of the Fund by
the Administering Authority, ensuring Head of Pension
it's responsibilities are met, while costs Fund
are minimised

Inherent Risk
or Opportunity
L/V I/B
R Controls

3

4

4

4

3

9

The Administering Authority considers all
consultation papers issued by the
Government and comments where
appropriate. Considered different % take
up scenarios for active and deferred
members
The results of the most recent reforms
have been built into the 2013 valuation.
Any changes to member contribution
rates or benefit levels will be carefully
communicated with members to minimise
possible opt-outs or adverse actions.

Residual Risk
or Opportunity
L/V I/B
R

2

3

6

4

This risk is regularly monitored and, as
detailed in risk A/R 1.1 actions have
already been taken to increase the level
16
of Pensions Officers in order to improve
performance against key performance
indicators.

3

3

9

3

Regular monthly monitoring and
reconciliation of Fund contributions
received, including a detailed analysis of
12 individual employer contributions and
employee contributions by pay banding.
Robust debt management processes are
in place to recover any late payments

2

3

6

3

Procedures and processes are in place
and applied in relation to eg: checking for
"ghost" scheme members; multiple levels
of authorisation for claims and fund
payments plus secondary checking of
12
lump sum payments. Procedures are
documented and staff are trained and
managed in carrying these out. The
Fund's internal auditors carry out regular
reviews.

2

3

6

Direction of Travel

Gloucestershire LGPS Pension Fund Risk Register

►

►

►

Category of Risk
or Opportunity
Period Comments / Additional Actions

All risks are
monitored on an
on-going basis.
Date of last
review.

Legislative &
Regulatory

In order to effectively deal with the
increased workload emanating from the
new 2016 CARE scheme, additional
pensions officers were recuited to in the
Pension Administration Team during 2016
as stage 1 of a review of the Pension
Administration Team. A further four staff
members have now been recuited in 2018
under stage 2 of the review, to bring the
staffing within the Pension Administration
team up to the agreed full establishment
funded by the budget.

16/01/2019

Legislative &
Regulatory

Although adequate actions have been
taken to address the performance issues
in the context of the increased
administration burdens of the career
average pension scheme, significant risks
still exist in relation to fully meeting the
standards required by the Pension
Regulator and to deal with the increased
complexities of things such as annual and
lifetime allowances. To address these risks
it is intended to implement stage 3 of the
Pension Administration Team review
during 2019/20. This is likely to involve an
increase in the number of SEnior Pension
Officers. The financial implications of these
liekely changes will be built into the budget
proposal for 2019/20 which will be included
within the Business Plan submitted to the
May 2019 meeting of the Pension
Committee.

16/01/2019

Legislative &
Regulatory

Fraud

16/01/2019

The funds internal auditors regularly review
the adequacy of controls within the
Pensions Section. These reviews make
use of experienced Counter Fraud staff
who are available to the internal auditors.

16/01/2019

Ref

Risk or Opportunity Description

Benefits of taking opportunity or
Consequences if risk occurs and
related objectives

A/R4

A/R5

Failure to undertake a full reconciliation of
Guaranteed Minimum Pensions records held on the
Gloucestershire LGPS Altair system with those held Additional financial costs to the Fund
by HMRC could result in additional financial costs
to the Gloucestershire Fund.

G1

Page 14

G2

G3

Actuarial or investment advice is not sought, or is
not heeded, or proves to be insufficient in some
way

Administering Authority failing to commission the
Fund Actuary to carry out a termination valuation
for a departing Admission Body.

Owner

To ensure the fund is proactive in the
development of the proposals and the
robust control environment required for Head of Pension
the collective management of assets, Fund
to avoid a detrimental impact on the
fund.

Does the fund have sufficient resources to provide
sufficient input to the development of the Brunel
Pension Partnership in the context of the
importance of ensuring that the partnership
operates in an efficient and effective manner.

Administering Authority unaware of structural
changes in an employer’s membership (e.g. large
fall in employee members, large number of
retirements) or not advised of an employer closing
to new entrants

Version: 1d

The achievement of fully funded
pension liabilities over the long term

Head of Pension
Fund

Head of Pension
Fund

Efficient management of the Fund by
the Administering Authority, ensuring Head of Pension
it's responsibilities are met, while costs Fund
are minimised

Efficient management of the Fund by
the Administering Authority, ensuring Head of Pension
it's responsibilities are met, while costs Fund
are minimised

Inherent Risk
or Opportunity
L/V I/B
R Controls

4

5

4

4

4

Residual Risk
or Opportunity
L/V I/B
R

Direction of Travel

Gloucestershire LGPS Pension Fund Risk Register

Category of Risk
or Opportunity
Period Comments / Additional Actions
Now that the partnership has developed to
the establishment of the new company,
with senior appointments being made,
Legislative & Regulimited senior officer resources can now be
more directed at the important client side
roles, including looking at the adequacy of
control systems.

All risks are
monitored on an
on-going basis.
Date of last
review.

4

Additional staffing resources may be
required to facilitate dedicated staffing
16 resources to take forward the pooling
proposal. This may require additional
contributions from participating funds.

3

A detailed reconciliation procedure has
commenced and a large number of
discrepancies have been identified where
15
the Gloucestershire Pension Fund is not
liable for GMP payments held on HMRC
records.

2

3

6

▼

Governance

3

The Administering Authority has a close
relationship with employing bodies and
communicates required standards e.g. for
submission of data.
12 The Actuary may revise the rates and
Adjustments certificate to increase an
employer’s contributions (under
Regulation 38) between triennial
valuations

2

3

6

►

Governance

16/01/2019

2

3

6

►

Governance

16/01/2019

2

3

6

►

Governance

16/01/2019

3

3

The Administering Authority maintains
close contact with its specialist advisers.
Advice is delivered via formal meetings
involving Elected Members, and recorded
12
appropriately.
Actuarial advice is subject to professional
requirements such as peer review

The Administering Authority requires
employers with Best Value contractors (
Transferee Admission Bodies) to inform it
of forthcoming changes. The
administering authority also monitors
contract periods of Transferee Admission
12 Bodies and regularly monitors levels of
active employees across all employers
but particularly for Community Admission
Bodies. Where their active membership
materially decreases further steps are
taken.

2

3

6

►

Detailed reconciliation process completed
and results returned to HMRC which has
resulted in a significant reduction in
potential iabilities.

16/01/2019

16/01/2019

Ref

Risk or Opportunity Description

Benefits of taking opportunity or
Consequences if risk occurs and
related objectives

Version: 1d

Owner

Inherent Risk
or Opportunity
L/V I/B
R Controls

Page 15

Direction of Travel

Gloucestershire LGPS Pension Fund Risk Register

Category of Risk
or Opportunity
Period Comments / Additional Actions

3

3

9

►

Governance

16/01/2019

2

3

6

►

Governance

16/01/2019

Residual Risk
or Opportunity
L/V I/B
R

G4

An employer ceasing to exist with insufficient
funding or adequacy of a bond.

Efficient management of the Fund by
the Administering Authority, ensuring Head of Pension
it's responsibilities are met, while costs Fund
are minimised

4

3

The Administering Authority believes that
it would normally be too late to address
the position if it was left to the time of
departure.
The risk is mitigated by:
Seeking a funding guarantee from another
scheme employer.
Alerting the prospective employer to its
obligations and encouraging it to take
independent actuarial advice.
Vetting prospective employers before
admission.
12
Where permitted under the regulations
requiring a bond to protect the Fund from
various risks.
Requiring new Community Admission
Bodies to have a scheme employer with
tax raising powers as guarantor.
Reviewing bond or guarantor
arrangements at regular intervals.
Monitoring funding levels more closely as
approaching cessation and reviewing
contributions well ahead of cessation if
thought appropriate

G5

Failure to comply with the Myners’ Investment
Principles

Efficient management of the Fund by
the Administering Authority, ensuring Head of Pension
it's responsibilities are met, while costs Fund
are minimised

4

3

Compliance as detailed in the Statement
12 of Investment Principles is kept under
regular review.

3

Training needs assessments for the
Administering Authority are carried out
and an annual training plan produced. The
Fund subscribes to the CIPFA Knowledge
and Skills Framework for the LGPS and
12
makes this information available to all
members of the Pension Committee and
relevant officers. Appropriately qualified
external advisers and consultants are
used as appropriate.

3

3

9

▲

Governance

4

Personal data and scanned documents
relating to scheme members are
maintained in an online system with
logical access controls via individual
password access for those that need to
maintain and access this information.
Procedures for maintaining pension
16
records are documented and the process
is monitored and managed within the
Pensions Administration team.
Procedures are regularly reviewed by the
Fund's internal auditors. Physical access
controls are also in operation within the
Pension Fund office.

1

4

4

►

Governance

G6

G7

Efficient management of the Fund by
Lack of relevant expertise, knowledge,skills and
the Administering Authority, ensuring Head of Pension
resources at officer and member level in relation to
it's responsibilities are met, while costs Fund
administering the LGPS
are minimised

Efficient management of the Fund by
Failure to internally hold personal data securely and the Administering Authority, ensuring Head of Pension
keep pension records up-to-date and accurate
it's responsibilities are met, while costs Fund
are minimised

4

4

This risk has slightly increased with the
departure of the previous S151 Officer who
had accumulated significant expertise in
this area, having had limited knowledge
prior to her appointment. The acting S151
officer now takes up this role and is
already increasing his knowledge in this
area after discussions with the Head of
Pensions, Actuary, and Independent
Advisor to the Fund.

All risks are
monitored on an
on-going basis.
Date of last
review.

16/01/2019

16/01/2019

Ref

Risk or Opportunity Description

Benefits of taking opportunity or
Consequences if risk occurs and
related objectives

Version: 1d

Owner

Page 16

G8

Loss of experience on the Pension Fund
Committee or Pension Board, and/or the lack of
adequate training, resulting in a negative impact on
governance arrangements within the
Gloucestershire LGPS.

Efficient management of the Fund by
the Administering Authority, ensuring Head of Pension
it's responsibilities are met, while costs Fund
are minimised

G9

Transition from the current custodian to State
Street Bank under the Brunel Pension Partnership
resulting in failings during the transition and/or
inadequate performance reports post transition
and/or negative impacts on the final accounts of the
Pension Fund due to failings in the accounting
reports received from State Street Bank

Efficient management of the Fund by
the Administering Authority, ensuring Head of Pension
it's responsibilities are met, while costs Fund
are minimised

G10

Failure to comply with the General Data Protection
Regulation resulting in breaches which have to be
reported to the Pension Regulator and the
Information Commissioners Office resulting in
compliants from scheme members and/or
significant financial fines.

Efficient management of the Fund by
the Administering Authority, ensuring Head of Pension
it's responsibilities are met, while costs Fund
are minimised

G11

Failure to protect the Pension Fund's key
information and data as a result of exploited
technological vulnerabilities facilitated through
malicious attack, primarily from external sources.

Efficient management of the Fund by
the Administering Authority, ensuring Head of Pension
it's responsibilities are met, while costs Fund
are minimised

Inherent Risk
or Opportunity
L/V I/B
R Controls

3

3

5

5

Residual Risk
or Opportunity
L/V I/B
R

4

Training is provided on an on-going basis
to Committee and Board Members both at
12 formal meetings of the Committee/Board
and at internal and external training
sessions.

4

Detailed control procedures implemented
during the transition with supoort from a
12
transition manager working for the Brunel
Pension Partnership

4

Detailed guidance and support is being
obtained from the GCC Information
Management Team which will include the
20 production of an action plan to detail and
monitor actions required to ensure
compliance within the Gloucestershire
LGPS.

3

4

12

4

Anti-malware and internet security
software. Patch management policies and
20 procedures. Compliance with PSN.
Internal and External ICT security
testing.Manging user privileges.

3

3

9

1

1

4

3

4

3

Direction of Travel

Gloucestershire LGPS Pension Fund Risk Register

Category of Risk
or Opportunity
Period Comments / Additional Actions

►

Governance

All risks are
monitored on an
on-going basis.
Date of last
review.

16/01/2019

Governance

No major problems were encoutered
during the transitions undertaken to date
and assets transferred were reconciled
back to the detailed records held by each
manager.

16/01/2019

►

Governance

Detailed guidance and support is being
obtained from the GCC Information
Management Team which will include the
production of an action plan to detail and
monitor actions required to ensure
compliance within the Gloucestershire
LGPS.

16/01/2019

►

Governance

▼

16/01/2019

Agenda Item 4
Pension Board
7th March 2019
Pensions Contract Decisions
Report of the Strategic Finance Director
The purpose of this report is to inform the Board of two important contract
decisions that have been taken recently.
These decisions relate to:


The award of a new 7 year contract for actuarial services



The award of a contract for just over 4 years for the hosting of the Altair
Pension Administration system.

Decision reports on both of these contracts are attached.
Recommendation
That the Board notes the two contract decisions.
Contact Officer
Mark Spilsbury - Head of Pension Fund (01452 328920)

Page 17

This page is intentionally left blank

Page 19

Page 20

Page 21

Page 22

Page 23

Page 24

Page 25

Page 26

Page 27

Page 28

Pension Board – 7th March 2019
Additional Information in relation to the performance information reported to the October 2018 meeting of the Pension Board in relation to
2018/19 performance

Payment Type
Death Grant
Lump Sum Retiring
Allowance
Refund

Page 29

Transfer Out

Period
01/04/2018 30/09/2018
01/04/2018 30/09/2018
01/04/2018 30/09/2018
01/04/2018 30/09/2018

Description
Death Grants paid within 8
working days
Lump Sum Retiring Allowance
paid within 15 working days
Refunds paid within 15 working
days
Transfer Out paid within 15
working days

Average
Days Of
Cases
Over
Target
ONLY

Target
Days

Avg
Days
Taken

Min
Days
Taken

Max
Days
Taken

Total
Cases
Processed

Number
Under
Target
Days

Number
On
Target
Days

Number
Over
Target
Days

8

7.04

1

17

47

31

8

8

13

15

12.62

1

27

375

231

39

105

17.7

15

7.47

1

45

267

260

1

6

24.33

15

5.34

1

16

65

64

0

1

16

Agenda Item 5

This page is intentionally left blank

Agenda Item 6
Pension Board
7th March 2019
Statutory guidance on asset pooling in the Local Government
Pension Scheme
Report of the Strategic Finance Director
Report
The DCLG have issued draft guidance on asset pooling which is attached.
They are now inviting views on this draft guidance. This will be an informal
consultation with interested parties only, including the Scheme Advisory
Board, Pensions Committees, Local Pension Boards, the pool Joint
Committees or equivalent, the Cross Pool Collaboration Group, the pool
operating companies where owned by participating funds, and CIPFA.
It is intended that a Client Group workshop will be held with representatives of
the Brunel Pension Partnership with a view of submitting a joint response to
this consultation.
However, all Funds are also free to consider whether they wish to submit a
fund response to the consultation.
Recommendation
That the Board consider whether there are any points that it wishes to feed
back on the draft statutory guidance on asset pooling.
Contact Officer
Mark Spilsbury - Head of Pension Fund (01452 328920)

Page 31

This page is intentionally left blank

Statutory

guidance on asset pooling in the Local Government Pension Scheme

Local Government Pension Scheme
Statutory guidance on asset pooling

1

Page 33

Statutory

guidance on asset pooling in the Local Government Pension Scheme

Contents
Foreword
1

Introduction

2

Definitions

3

Structure and scale

4

Governance

5

Transition of assets to the pool

6

Making new investments outside the pool

7

Infrastructure investment

8

Reporting

2

Page 34

Statutory

guidance on asset pooling in the Local Government Pension Scheme

Foreword
The reform of investment management in the Local Government Pension Scheme (LGPS) for
England and Wales began in 2015 with the publication of criteria and guidance on pooling of LGPS
assets, following extensive consultation with the sector. LGPS administering authorities responded
by coming together in groups of their own choosing to form eight asset pools.
Through the hard work and commitment of people across the scheme, those eight pools are now
operational. Their scale makes them significant players at European or global level, and significant
annual savings have already been delivered, with the pools forecasting savings of up to £2bn by
2033. Along the way many lessons have been learnt and great progress has been made in
developing expertise and capacity, including in private markets and infrastructure investment.
This is a considerable achievement in itself, but there is still a long way to go to complete the
transition of assets and to deliver the full benefits of scale. In the light of experience to date with
pooling and the challenges ahead, authorities have requested guidance on a range of issues. The
time is now right for new guidance to support further progress.

3

Page 35

Statutory

1

guidance on asset pooling in the Local Government Pension Scheme

Introduction

1.1
This guidance sets out the requirements on administering authorities in relation to the
pooling of LGPS assets, building on previous Ministerial communications and guidance on
investment strategies, and taking account of the current state of progress on pooling. It is made
under the powers conferred on the Secretary of State by Regulation 7(1) of The Local Government
Pension Scheme (Management and Investment of Funds) Regulations 2016 (the 2016
Regulations). Administering authorities are required to act in accordance with it.
1.2
This guidance replaces the section at pages 7 to 8 of Part 2 of Guidance for Preparing and
Maintaining an Investment Strategy, issued in September 2016 and revised in July 2017, which
deals with regulation 7(2)(d) of the 2016 Regulations. It also replaces Local Government Pension
Scheme: Investment Reform Criteria and Guidance, issued in November 2015.
2

Definitions

2.1

This guidance introduces a set of definitions for use in this and future guidance, as follows:

‘Pool’ the entity comprising all elements of a Local Government Pension Scheme (LGPS) asset
pool
‘Pool member’ an LGPS administering authority which has committed to invest in an LGPS pool
and participates in its governance
‘Pool governance body’ the body used by pool members to oversee the operation of the pool and
ensure that the democratic link to pool members is maintained (for example, Joint Committees and
officer committees)
‘Pool company’ the Financial Conduct Authority (FCA) regulated company which undertakes
selection, appointment, dismissal and variation of terms of investment managers, and provides and
operates pool vehicles for pool members
‘Pool fund’ a regulated unitised fund structure operated by a regulated pool company, such as an
Authorised Contractual Scheme (ACS)
‘Pool vehicle’ an investment vehicle (including pool funds) made available to pool members by a
regulated pool company
‘Pooled asset’ an investment for which the selection, appointment, dismissal and variation of
terms for the investment manager is delegated to a regulated pool company, or an investment held
in a pool vehicle
‘Retained asset’ an existing investment retained by a pool member during the transition period
‘Local asset’ a new investment by a pool member which is not a pooled asset
3

Structure and scale

3.1
All administering authorities must pool their assets in order to deliver the benefits of scale
and collaboration. These include:
 reduced investment costs without affecting gross risk-adjusted returns
 reduced costs for services such as custody, and for procurement
 strengthened governance and stewardship and dissemination of good practice
 greater investment management capacity and capability in the pool companies, including in
private markets
 increased transparency on total investment management costs
 diversification of risk through providing access to a wider range of asset classes, including
infrastructure investments
3.2
In order to maximise the benefits of scale, pool members must appoint a pool company or
companies to implement their investment strategies. This includes:
 the selection, appointment, dismissal and variation of terms of investment managers,
whether internal or external
4

Page 36

Statutory




guidance on asset pooling in the Local Government Pension Scheme

the management of internally managed investments
the provision and management of pool vehicles including pool funds

It is for the pool companies to decide which investment managers to use for pool vehicles,
including whether to use in-house or external management. Pool members may continue to decide
if they wish to invest via in-house or externally managed vehicles.
3.3
Pool companies may be wholly owned by pool members as shareholders or may be
procured and appointed by the pool members as clients.
3.4
A pool company must be a company regulated by the Financial Conduct Authority (FCA)
with appropriate FCA permissions for regulated activities. This helps ensure the pools comply with
financial services legislation, and provides additional assurance to scheme members and
employers. Depending on the structure of the pool, appropriate permissions may include
permissions for execution, acting as agent, provision of advice, or such other permissions as
required by the FCA. Where regulated funds (e.g. in an ACS) are operated by the pool company it
should comply with relevant UK legislation.
Regular review of services and procurement
3.5
Pool governance bodies, working with the pool company, should regularly review the
provision of services to the pool, and the process of procurement, to ensure value for money and
cost transparency. Where services are procured or shared by pool members, pool members
should regularly review the rationale and cost-effectiveness of such arrangements, compared to
procurement and management through the pool company. Pool members and pool companies
should consider using the national LGPS procurement frameworks
(www.nationallgpsframeworks.org) where appropriate.
Regular review of active and passive management
3.6
Pool members, working with the pool company, should regularly review the balance
between active and passive management in the light of performance net of total costs. They
should consider moving from active to passive management where active management has not
generated better net performance over a reasonable period. Pool members should also seek to
ensure performance by asset class net of total costs is at least comparable with market
performance for similar risk profiles.
4

Governance

4.1
Pool members must establish and maintain a pool governance body in order to set the
direction of the pool and to hold the pool company to account. Pool governance bodies should be
appropriately democratic and sufficiently resourced to provide for effective decision making and
oversight.
4.2
Pool members, through their internal governance structures, are responsible for effective
governance and for holding pool companies and other service providers to account. Strategic
asset allocation remains the responsibility of pool members, recognising their authority’s specific
liability and cash-flow forecasts.
4.3
Members of Pension Committees are elected representatives with duties both to LGPS
employers and members, and to local taxpayers. Those who serve on Pension Committees and
equivalent governance bodies in LGPS administering authorities are, in many ways, required to act
in the same way as trustees in terms of their duty of care to scheme employers and members, but
are subject to a different legal framework, which derives from public law. In particular while they
have legal responsibilities for the prudent and effective stewardship of LGPS funds, LGPS benefits
are not dependent on their stewardship but are established and paid under statute in force at the
time.

5

Page 37

Statutory

guidance on asset pooling in the Local Government Pension Scheme

4.4
Those who serve on Pension Committees and equivalent governance bodies in pool
members should therefore take a long term view of pooling implementation and costs. They should
take account of the benefits across the pool and across the scheme as a whole, in the interests of
scheme members, employers and local taxpayers, and should not seek simply to minimise costs in
the short term.
4.5
Local Pension Boards of pool members have a key role in pool governance, given their
responsibilities under the LGPS Regulations 2013 (regulation 106 (1)) for assisting authorities in
securing compliance with legislation, and ensuring effective and efficient governance and
administration of the LGPS. They can provide additional scrutiny and challenge to strengthen pool
governance and reporting, and improve transparency and accountability for both members and
employers.
4.6
Local Pension Boards may also provide a group of knowledgeable and experienced people
from which observers may be drawn if pool members wish to include observers on pool
governance bodies.
Strategic and tactical asset allocation
4.7
Pool members are responsible for deciding their investment strategy and asset allocation,
and remain the beneficial owners of their assets, in accordance with Guidance for Preparing and
Maintaining an Investment Strategy.
4.8
Pool members collectively through their pool governance bodies should decide the pool’s
policy on which aspects of asset allocation are strategic and should remain with the administering
authority, and which are tactical and best undertaken by the pool company. Pool governance
bodies, when determining where such decisions lie, should be mindful of the trade-off between
greater choice and lower costs and should involve the pool company to ensure the debate is fully
informed on the opportunities and efficiencies available through greater scale.
4.9
Providing pool members with asset allocation choices through an excessively wide range of
pool vehicles or investment managers will restrict the pool company’s ability to use scale to drive
up value. On the other hand maximising scale by significantly limiting asset allocation options may
not provide all pool members with the diversification needed to meet their particular liability profile
and cash flow requirements. Pool members should set out in their Funding Strategy Statement and
Investment Strategy Statement how they, through the pool governance body, have balanced these
considerations and how they will keep this under regular review.
4.10 Where necessary to deliver the asset allocation required by pool members, pool companies
may provide a range of pool vehicles and in addition arrange and manage segregated mandates or
access to external specialist funds. Pool governance bodies should ensure that their regulated
pool companies have in place the necessary permissions to enable pool vehicles to be made
available where appropriate.
4.11 Determining where asset allocation decisions lie will not be a one-off decision as pool
member requirements will change over time. Pool governance bodies should ensure that a regular
review process, which involves both pool members and pool companies, is in place.
5

Transition of assets to the pool

5.1
Pool members should transition existing assets into the pool as quickly and cost effectively
as possible. Transition of listed assets should take place over a relatively short period.
5.2
Pool governance bodies, working with pool companies and, where appointed, external
transition managers, should seek to minimise transition costs to pool members while effectively
balancing speed, cost and timing, taking into account exit or penalty costs and opportunities for
crossing trades.
6

Page 38

Statutory

guidance on asset pooling in the Local Government Pension Scheme

5.2
The transition process will incur direct or indirect costs which may fall unevenly across pool
members. For example, where the selected managers are used by some pool members but not
others. In such cases pool members who are already using the selected manager may incur
significantly lower (if any) transition costs than those who do not.
5.3
Inter-authority payments (or other transfers of value) may be desirable in order to share
these costs equitably between pool members. The Government’s view is that such payments are
investment costs within Regulation 4(5) of the 2016 Regulations, and payments made by a pool
member to meet its agreed share of costs may be charged to the fund of that pool member,
whether the payments are made to other pool members, the pool company, or another body by
agreement.
Temporary retention of existing assets
5.4
In exceptional cases, some existing investments may be retained by pool members on a
temporary basis. If the cost of moving the existing investment to a pool vehicle exceeds the
benefits of doing so, it may be appropriate to continue to hold and manage the existing investment
to maturity before reinvesting the funds through a pool vehicle.
5.5
In many cases there will be benefits in such retained assets being managed by the pool
company in the interim. However pool members may retain the management of existing long term
investment contracts where the penalty for early exit or transfer of management would be
significant. These may include life insurance contracts (‘life funds’) accessed by pool members for
the purpose of passive equity investment, and some infrastructure investments. Pool members
may also retain existing direct property assets where these may be more effectively managed by
pool members.
Regular review of retained assets
5.6
Pool members, working with the pool company, should undertake regular reviews (at least
every three years) of retained assets and the rationale for keeping these assets outside the pool.
They should review whether management by the pool company would deliver benefits. Pool
members should consider the long term costs and benefits across the pool, taking account of the
guidance on cost-sharing, and the presumption should be in favour of transition to pool vehicles or
moving such assets to the management of the pool company.
6

Making new investments outside the pool

6.1
Pool members should normally make all new investments through the pool company in
order to maximise the benefits of scale. Following the 2019 valuation, pool members will review
their investment strategies and put revised strategies in place from 2020. From 2020, when new
investment strategies are in place, pool members should make new investments outside the pool
only in very limited circumstances.
6.2
A small proportion of a pool member’s assets may be invested in local initiatives within the
geographical area of the pool member or in products tailored to particular liabilities specific to that
pool member. Local assets should:



Not normally exceed an aggregate 5% of the value of the pool member’s assets at the point
of investment.
Be subject to a similar assessment of risk, return and fit with investment strategy as any
other investment.

6.3
Pool members may invest through pool vehicles in a pool other than their own where
collaboration across pools or specialisation by pools can deliver improved net returns.

7

Page 39

Statutory

guidance on asset pooling in the Local Government Pension Scheme

6.4
During the period of transition, while pool governance bodies and pool companies work
together to determine and put in place the agreed range of pool vehicles, a pool member may
make new investments outside the pool, if following consultation with the pool company, they
consider this is essential to deliver their investment strategy. This exemption only applies until the
pool vehicles needed to provide the agreed asset allocation are in place.
7

Infrastructure investment

7.1
Infrastructure investment has the potential to provide secure long term returns with a good
fit to pension liabilities, and form part of investment strategies of authorities. The establishment of
the pools was intended to provide the scale needed for cost-effective investment in infrastructure,
and to increase capacity and capability to invest in infrastructure.
7.2
There is no target for infrastructure investment for pool members or pools, but pool
members are expected to set an ambition on investment in this area. Pool companies may provide
pool vehicles for investment in UK assets, or overseas assets, or both, as required to provide the
risk and return profile to meet pool member investment strategies. However the Government
expects pool companies to provide the capability and capacity for pools over time to move towards
levels of infrastructure investment similar to overseas pension funds of comparable aggregate size.

7.3

Pool companies may provide pool vehicles for investment in existing (brownfield) or new
(greenfield) infrastructure, based on an assessment of the benefits and risks in relation to pool
member liabilities, and non-financial factors where relevant. Pool members may invest in their own
geographic areas but the asset selection and allocation decisions should normally be taken by the
pool company in order to manage any potential conflicts of interest effectively, maintain propriety,
and ensure robust evaluation of the case for investment.

7.4
For the purpose of producing annual reports, infrastructure assets are defined in the
Chartered Institute of Public Finance and Accountancy (CIPFA) guidance Preparing the Annual
Report as follows:
Infrastructure assets are the facilities and structures needed for the functioning of communities and
to support economic development. When considered as an investment asset class, infrastructure
investments are normally expected to have most of the following characteristics:
•
Substantially backed by durable physical assets;
•
Long life and low risk of obsolescence;
•
Identifiable and reliable cash flow, preferably either explicitly or implicitly inflation-linked;
•
Revenues largely isolated from the business cycle and competition, for example, through
long term contracts, regulated monopolies or high barriers to entry;
•
Returns to show limited correlation to other asset classes.
Key sectors for infrastructure include transportation networks, power generation, energy
distribution and storage, water supply and distribution, communications networks, health and
education facilities, social accommodation and private sector housing.
Conventional commercial property is not normally included, but where it forms part of a broader
infrastructure asset, helps urban regeneration or serves societal needs it may be.
7.5
All residential property is included in this definition of infrastructure. It is not restricted to
social accommodation or private sector housing.
7.6
A variety of platforms may be required to implement the infrastructure investment strategies
of pool members. Pool companies are expected to provide access to a range of options over time
including direct and co-investment opportunities.
8

Reporting
8

Page 40

Statutory

guidance on asset pooling in the Local Government Pension Scheme

8.1
Pool members are required to report total investment costs and performance against
benchmarks publicly and transparently in their annual reports, following the CIPFA guidance
Preparing the Annual Report, with effect from the 2018-19 report.
8.2

In summary, pool member annual reports should include:












opening and closing value and proportion of pooled assets by asset class
opening and closing value and proportion of local assets by asset class
net and gross performance of pooled assets by asset class
total costs of pooled assets by asset class
for actively managed listed assets, net performance by asset class net of total costs
compared to appropriate passive indices over a one, three and five year period
net and gross performance of local assets by asset class
total costs of local assets by asset class
asset transition during the reporting year
transition plans for local assets
pool set-up and transition costs, presented alongside in-year and cumulative savings from
pooling
ongoing investment management costs by type, with a breakdown between pooled assets
and local assets

8.3
Investments should be classed as pool assets on the basis of the definition in the CIPFA
guidance Preparing the Annual Report.
For the purpose of defining those assets which are classed as being within an asset pool, ‘pooled
assets’ are those for which implementation of the investment strategy – i.e. the selection,
appointment, dismissal and variation of terms for the investment managers (including internal
managers) – has been contractually, transferred to a third party out with the individual pension
fund’s control.
8.4
Any investment where a pool member retains the day to day management, or the
responsibility for selecting or reappointing an external manager, is not a pool asset.
8.5
Pool members should provide a rationale for all assets continuing to be held outside the
pool, including the planned end date and performance net of costs including a comparison which
costs of any comparable pool vehicles. They should also set out a high level plan for transition of
assets.
8.6
The SAB will publish an annual report on the pools based on aggregated data from the pool
member annual reports, in the Scheme Annual Report. Pool members should comply with all
reasonable requests for any additional data and information from the SAB to enable it to publish a
comprehensive report.
8.7
Pool members should ensure that pool companies report in line with the SAB Code of Cost
Transparency. They should also ensure that pool companies require their internal and external
investment managers to do so.
8.8
Pool members should also ensure that the annual report of the pool company is broadly
consistent with the reports of pool members, and with the Scheme Annual Report, in so far as it
relates to their investments, and that the report includes a narrative to explain differences. These
may arise for example from reporting periods of pool companies which differ from that of the pool
member.
8.9
Pool members are required to report any change which results in failure to meet the
requirements of this guidance to the LGPS Scheme Advisory Board (SAB) and to MHCLG.

9

Page 41

This page is intentionally left blank

Page 43

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 SEPTEMBER 2018

Agenda Item 7

An n ual Report & Finan c ial Stat em ent s

Brunel Pension Partnership

Page 44

Brunel Pension Partnership Limited

Annual Report & Financial Statements
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 SEPTEMBER 2018

Com pa ny re gi s t ra t io n n u m be r 1 0 42 91 1 0
Aut h o ri se d an d re gul a te d by t h e Fi n a n c i a l Co n d u c t Au t h ori ty No. 7 9 01 6 8

Pension Partnership

CONTENTS
Table of Contents

COMPANY INFORMATION
CHAIR’S FOREWORD

..................................................................................................................

6

..................................................................................................................................

7

1. STRATEGIC REPORT AND BUSINESS REVIEW

....................................................................

8

REPORT OF THE CEO

....................................................................................................................................

8

REPORT OF THE CIO

......................................................................................................................................

10

REPORT OF THE CHAIR OF AUDIT, RISK AND COMPLIANCE COMMITTEE

Page 45

..........................

14

...........................................................................................

16

................................................................................................................................

18

................................................................................................................................................

20

BUSINESS AND FINANCIAL REVIEW
PRINCIPLES IN BRIEF
OUR STRATEGY

OUR OBJECTIVES
MILESTONES

...........................................................................................................................................

21

. . . . .................................................................................................................................................

22

OVERALL FINANCIAL PERFORMANCE

..................................................................................................

22

Pension Partnership

CORPORATE PERFORMANCE

................................................................................................................

22

..........................................................................................................................................

23

...............................................................................................................................................

24

CLIENT SAVINGS
DISCLOSURES

AWARDS & AFFILIATIONS

........................................................................................................................

2. CORPORATE GOVERNANCE
GOVERNANCE STRUCTURE

.............................................. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .

30

...................................................................................................................

30

MEMBERSHIP OF BOARD / COMMITTEES / ATTENDANCE
DIRECTORS’ REPORT

28

.....................................................

31

...............................................................................................................................

36

Page 46

REPORT OF THE INDEPENDENT AUDITOR

3. FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

....................................................................................

40

................................................... . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .

44

STATEMENT OF TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

........ . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .

45

.............................. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .

46

................................................. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .

48

STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

................................. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

.......................................................................................

50
51

Pension Partnership

CO M PA N Y IN FORM AT I O N
DIR ECTOR S
Laura Jane CHAPPELL
Michael John CLARK
Denise Marie-Reine LE GAL
Mark Robert MANSLEY
Frederique PIERRE-PIERRE
Stephen John TYSON

BANKERS
National Westminster Bank PLC
EXTERNAL AUDITORS
Grant Thornton UK LLP
INTERNAL AUDITORS
Deloitte LLP
TAX ADVISORS

Page 47

Dawn Suzanne TURNER

Deloitte LLP

Joseph Andrew WEBSTER

PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP

LEGAL ADVISORS
Eversheds Sutherland
FINANCIAL ADVISORS
PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP
FINANCIAL MARKET ADVISORS
Alpha Financial Markets Consulting
UK Limited

Pension Partnership

CHAIR’S FOREWORD

■

BRUNEL Pension Partnership Limited (Brunel or the Company) completed its first full
year of business in 2018. It has been an exciting and busy year with much to celebrate,
some examples of which are:
We gained our Financial Conduct Authority (FCA) authorisation in March 2018,
having submitted at the end of September 2017

Page 48

■

We launched and transitioned circa £6 billion assets under management into our five
available Passive Equity portfolios with Legal & General Investment Management

■

We selected our Authorised Contractual Scheme (ACS) platform providers FundRock
and we are progressing well with selecting the managers for our first two Active
Equity portfolios - UK and Low Volatility
These first portfolios will realise client savings materially in excess (circa £74 million)
of the November 2016 business case which forecasts total net savings of £550 million
over 20 years to 2036.

■ We were ready to provide Private Markets services almost two years ahead of schedule
■

We have already been recognised within the Local Government Pension Scheme
(LGPS) and Investment universe for our approach to Responsible Investment and
as leaders and contributors to our industry
We continue to be true to our 12 investment principles and I want to, in particular,
draw attention to our website www.brunelpensionpartnership.org that enables us
to deliver on one of those principles - transparency. We publish our annual report and
financial statements on our website and we will add other topics and specific annual
reports throughout next year, such as our voting record and performance.
In May, we published our Responsible Investment Policy, which you can find at
www.brunelpensionpartnership.org/responsible-investment/

Denise Le Gal
Chair

We know that our success to date is achieved through the totality of the partnership, which
we value, and which underpins our confidence of continued success.
I look forward to 2019 as we bring on new portfolios as part of making long-term sustainable
investments supported by robust and transparent processes.
I am passionate about protecting the interests of our shareholder LGPS funds and their
member beneficiaries, and forging better futures by investing for a world worth living in.

Pension Partnership

1.

STRATEGIC REPORT AND BUSINESS REVIEW

REPORT OF THE CEO
BUILDING THE BUSINESS
Strategic decisions were taken in the year, setting the stage for Brunel and our clients to flourish.
Firstly, we determined that the most tax efficient way of providing our Active Equity
portfolios was to sponsor and be the delegated portfolio manager of an Authorised
Contractual Scheme (ACS). This UK-based tax transparent vehicle allows our clients
to manage tax exposure in the optimum way. We are delighted to be working with
FundRock Management Company S.A. on this cornerstone set of investment portfolios.

Page 49

The second significant decision was to accelerate the offering of Private Markets
portfolios, enabled by appointing an outsourced middle and back office provider.
We are very excited to be working with Colmore PS Ltd in the provision of this service.
We have delivered our first full transition of assets of just over £6 billion into our Passive
Equity portfolio managed by Legal and General Investment Management (LGIM) and
are well underway with the first two portfolios with the ACS.
By the end of the 2018 calendar year, following nine months of being FCA-authorised,
Brunel are on track to having almost a third of the circa £29 billion assets of our shareholder clients under its management.

BUSINESS DEVELOPMENT & ACTIVITY
Momentum continued to build during the year. We started by moving into our new
offices on the 5th floor of 101 Victoria Street in Bristol in early October 2017. At this point
the team comprised the Brunel board and a handful of staff. Naturally, recruitment
has been a core part of building the Company. Our strategy of being based in Bristol
near transport links has proved effective. Bristol represents an appealing alternative
to London for financial professionals. Bristol is also a natural fulcrum for our broadly
southwest-based shareholder clients and the pension officer teams.

Dawn Turner
Ch ie f Exe cu t ive O f f icer
8

The organisation chart has filled out and as we have brought in more and more specialist
knowledge, we have been able to hone in on and enhance our approach to pooling

Pension Partnership

and regulated investment management. Our culture of open communications and fairness in dealings has allowed Brunel
to be dynamic. It has needed to be agile - building a business from scratch requires commitment and strong stakeholders.
We published our Responsible Investment (RI) Policy in May 2018. We are a company that was formed in order to pool the investments
of ten LGPS pension funds. Brunel is an example of collaborative success, realising significant savings, and we have sought further
collaborations to enhance our voice and influence on the sustainability of financial markets while being part of our local community.
This stretches from raising funds for our chosen local charity Above and Beyond (supporting hospitals in Bristol), to supporting
IIGCC (Institutional Investors Group on Climate Change), as well as engaging across the whole of the LGPS universe.

FUTURE PLANS & OUTLOOK
Another exciting year lies ahead for Brunel. Although we are delighted to have achieved some substantial milestones, we
recognise there are many more to deliver. The foundations have been laid while the governance has been tested and found
to be robust. We are excited to see that the strategy we have defined is already delivering client savings.

Page 50

We have agreed our Business Plan with our shareholders, which has recognised the resources required to continue to deliver
the savings achieved to date, operate robustly and equitably within an FCA-regulated environment.
Private Markets will continue to research and find managers to provide for our Secured Income, Infrastructure and Private
Equity portfolios. We will be managing the majority of our clients’ legacy property funds and will respond to any investment
strategy requirements for Private Debt as a result of our client’s triennial valuations and/or investments strategy decisions.
In the listed markets we will add to the available portfolios of Passive Equity, UK Active Equity and Low Volatility with Emerging
Markets and Developed High Alpha in Active Equity and in other investment services and classes such as Liability-Driven
Investments, Diversified Growth Funds, Passive Indexed Linked Gilts and Currency Hedging. We will also start searches for
other portfolios to be delivered in 2020.
We will be fulfilling the aims laid out in our Responsible Investment Policy and publishing details of our activities, enabling
visibility of our integration and collaboration and thus fulfilling our drive for transparency.
We will be supporting our shareholder clients in the first year of the new CIPFA reporting requirements on performance as part
of our core services. We will also respond to additional services that individual funds may require from us as part of our elective
service provisions.
Most importantly, we look forward to the strength of our partnership growing, with the governance in place allowing for excellent
two-way communications and for the ten funds to work together to maximise the benefits provided by their creation of Brunel,
their pool company.
FORGING BETTER FUTURES

9

Pension Partnership

REPORT OF THE CIO
My first full year as Chief Investment Officer has been one packed with challenge and
opportunity as we move from being essentially a project of ten pension funds to becoming
a fully-fledged regulated investment manager, with all the requirements this entails, while
maintaining the spirit of long-term partnership that will be crucial to the success of Brunel.
A key starting point has been to develop a suite of policies to ensure our investment practices
and procedures are robust and reflect best practice.
They cover key areas such as responsible investment, manager selection, investment risk,
manager monitoring, and stewardship.
In developing these policies, we have worked hard to ensure they embed our values and
investment principles.

Page 51

For example, our approach to risk needs to reflect the long-term perspective of our clients
and the nature of their liabilities.
This work has highlighted the tension that can exist between a regulated investment business
and the traditional focus of pension funds, but we believe we have found a good way forward.

Mark Mansley
Chief Investment Off icer
10

LISTED MARKETS
As discussed earlier, the first set of portfolios Brunel launched were for passive equities.
After a detailed and robust tender, which involved understanding the intricate details
of the costs and charges involved in running passive portfolios, LGIM were selected.
The portfolios were UK Equities, Developed Markets Equities, Low Carbon Global Equities
and Smart Beta Global Equities.
We were also prepared to offer emerging markets passive, but clients’ needs changed,
and this option was not taken up.
Our smart beta portfolio was of particular focus, and we worked closely with LGIM to
evaluate the approaches of the different index providers to multifactor index construction,
assessing elements such as simplicity, efficiency, academic support, performance
enhancements, and operational efficiency.
The decision in early 2018 to develop an ACS, and the subsequent search for an operator
to work with was one of the most significant of the year.

Pension Partnership

Whilst establishing an ACS is a major regulatory and legal challenge and brings with it additional regulatory requirements, it will deliver significant operational advantages and tax transparency and efficiency at a cost that is below
the vast majority of third-party fund structures.
We were pleased to identify an operator, FundRock, who shares our sense of partnership and collaboration.
We have worked hard throughout the year to engage fund managers and ensure they understand our needs and priorities.
A series of very successful manager days were held in Q4 2017 to inform managers of our overall strategy, priorities and
process, and we continue to actively share information with managers, through our website and press releases.
We held a great number of manager meetings throughout the year but have had to focus on our immediate priorities
and thank managers for their forbearance while we work through our substantial transition agenda.
We started work on the first of the set of manager selections for the ACS, for two portfolios: UK Equity and Low Volatility
Global Equity.

Page 52

An open call for expressions of interest saw responses from over 80 managers. Across the two portfolios, 15 managers
were invited to tender. The best of these were then subject to extensive investment and operational due diligence.
We also analysed the combination of managers to ensure we have the optimal mix, resulting in a combination which
offers an attractive blend of performance, risk and fees.
We are now completing legal contracts and implementation, with an announcement expected by the calendar year end.

PRIVATE MARKETS
On the Private Markets side there has been at least as dramatic a transformation. From virtually nothing at the start
of the financial year, a private markets team has been brought together under the leadership of our Head of Private
Markets, Richard Fanshawe, and significant milestones achieved, as outlined below.
The first stage was to review and refine Brunel’s five Private Markets portfolios, develop an operating model for their
implementation and specify key processes. This resulted in a solution which will enable our clients to make £1bn of
Private Markets commitments two years earlier than planned. Four detailed portfolio specification “Briefing Notes”
were produced to explain the asset class and our approach in more detail, resulting in significant commitments
from clients.
Some clients were keen to commit to our Secured Income portfolio quickly, so identifying suitable investment here became
a priority. Long-lease property was identified as a key area and after extensive market research and due diligence we
were pleased to be able to commit £338m to two Long-Lease Property Funds on behalf of three client funds.
11

Pension Partnership

The Private Markets team also identified the potential administrative and operational challenge of running complex
Private Market portfolios, but noted this could be significantly alleviated by appointing a mid and back office provider,
able to handle document management, reporting, cash management and other functions.
Such support will equip the team to focus on identifying the best investments and enable Brunel to achieve substantial
additional cost savings by removing multi-managers at several client funds.
A Business Case and shareholder support were secured and a full Official Journal of the European Union (OJEU)
procurement conducted for the services, resulting in the appointment of Colmore.
Work is actively continuing to identify opportunities for the Private Markets portfolios. Over 130 manager meetings have
been held. Several investments across Private Equity and Infrastructure are in final due diligence with potential commitments
before December 2018 with more expected to follow in early 2019.

Page 53

RESPONSIBLE INVESTMENT
I am immensely pleased with the impact we have had on responsible investment in our first full year, given the developing
nature of the organisation. This is thanks to the experience and reputation of Faith Ward, Chief Responsible Investment
Officer.
Working with clients we agreed our RI policy which is based on the three pillars of "To Integrate", "To Collaborate"
and "To Be Transparent", and has identified six key priorities, as mentioned in our RI Policy.
We have also developed a detailed stewardship policy to cover voting and engagement in time for the launch of our ACS.
Brunel believes that active ownership includes exercising good stewardship that supports the long-term success of all its assets.

Pe ns ion Pa rt ne rs hi p

12

Pension Partnership

Responsible investment is fully integrated into our manager selection process, covering Environmental, Social & Governance
(ESG) capabilities, as one would expect, but also culture, conduct, incentive alignment and other wider organisational issues
that could be relevant.
For example, in selecting LGIM to manage our passive equity, LGIM’s clear commitment to responsible investment,
stewardship, and promoting diversity internally as well as externally were significant and reassuring.
Collaboration with others has been a key theme.
The CEO of Brunel continues to chair the Cross Pool Working Group on responsible investment. We are an active member
of the Institutional Investors Group on Climate Change (IIGCC) and a key supporter of the Transition Pathway Initiative (TPI)
and Climate Action 100+, which support the integration of carbon and climate risk into our due diligence and engagement.
Brunel was the first LGPS pool to become a signatory of the UN backed Principles for Responsible Investment (PRI).
Diversity has clearly been demonstrated to add value to decision-making, whether by asset managers or companies. To
promote best practice Brunel is working with the Diversity Project, for which Brunel’s Chair, CEO and CRIO are ambassadors.

Page 54

Brunel is also a member of the 30% Club, which aims to develop a diverse pool of talent for all businesses.
Brunel has been active in providing input to UK policy makers, specifically the FRC on the UK Corporate Governance
Code, narrative reporting and UK Stewardship Code as well as being a member of the FRC Investor Advisory Group.
Brunel has also submitted to the Kingman review of the FRC and to the DWP review of Trustee Duties.
Copies of responses and details of advocacy work are publicly available.
Transparency is a core element of our RI approach, and Brunel is committed to decarbonising listed portfolios, providing
carbon foot printing to assist in reducing unrewarded carbon risk and low carbon portfolio opportunities.
Brunel advocates strongly for improved transparency and will disclose in line with the recommendations of the Task
Force on Climate-related Financial Disclosures.
Brunel will forge better futures by investing for a world worth living in, and by working in collaboration with others.
Our full list of affiliations can be found at the bottom of website home page: www.brunelpensionpartnership.com

FINALLY
In a year of significant progress and development the most exciting and rewarding element for me personally has
been building up a team of investment professionals who share Brunel’s values and vision of the future of investment management and who have worked incredibly hard to deliver the achievements listed above.
I would like to thank them for their efforts over the year.
13

Annual Report & Financial Statements

30 SEPTEMBER 2018

Pension Partnership

Page 55

REPORT OF THE CHAIR OF AUDIT, RISK AND COMPLIANCE COMMITTEE
Brunel is exposed to a wide range of risks as it develops and implements its business
strategy.
We are regulated by the Financial Conduct Authority and have a unique governance
and ownership model, working closely in partnership with our clients, who are also our
shareholders.
Effective risk management is key to Brunel’s success.
We actively monitor current risks and scan the horizon for emerging risks.
We place significant reliance on the good conduct of our employees and from inception have developed our culture to help support the Board as it discharges its duties
effectively, managing our risks within the appetite set by our risk framework.
This strong culture allows us to set out a clear ‘three lines of defence’ model to define
responsibilities and oversight.
The Board is accountable for Brunel’s risk management and, in conjunction with the
Audit, Risk and Compliance Committee (ARC), has oversight of the most significant
risks facing Brunel.
2018 DEVELOPMENTS
We are moving through Brunel’s start-up phase, which will last two to three years,
with increasing elements of business as usual.
Identification and management of our key risks is a priority.
Notable milestones include securing and fitting out our office, obtaining FCA authorisation
as a MiFID full scope asset manager, recruiting thirty people and then making our first
selection, appointment and transition of clients’ investments into the passive portfolios.

Mike Clark
Non-Executive Director
14

Throughout this year, the business has carried out regular risk reporting to the Executive
Committee (ExCo) and then through to the ARC on our key risks, in the context of our
risk appetite measures and metrics.
In addition, we look to enhance these measures and tolerances as we build out the
Company’s operations and learn from our experience of managing these risks.

Pension Partnership

KEY RISKS

Page 56

We have defined 22 risk categories across strategic, financial, operational and conduct risks.
Our exposure to these risks is assessed in the light of the current environment. We take into consideration the views
of the internal risk owners, the regulatory, client and political environment together with input from other subject
matter experts inside and outside the business.
The ARC considers those risks it believes are heightened each quarter and we then undertake further work to ensure those
risks are mitigated and managed within tolerance.
Our current key risks are as follows:
Strategic: Business planning risk Fee savings and cost savings delivered to date mean this risk is viewed positively.
Current focus areas include ensuring we have a robust client engagement framework with clear communications around product
launches to ensure that clients, with their advisors, can make timely decisions, working together as partners within the pool.
We seek to facilitate a consistent approach to governance across Brunel. We also plan to ensure that the time taken to obtain
approval of Special Reserve Matters does not significantly constrain Brunel’s operations.
Further, an appropriate budget will ensure there is no delay in delivering the fee savings we plan to achieve, and that Brunel can
operate effectively.
Strategic: Client and political risk Pooling was a government-led initiative and as such is subject to a degree of political risk.
We are working hard to facilitate a good understanding of Brunel’s governance with all clients (and in their role as shareholders), and with their advisors.
While Brunel was born in an LGPS environment, the necessary shift in thinking so that Brunel is recognised as an FCA-regulated
asset manager has also been a key focus over the last year. At the national level we fully support the Scheme Advisory Board, in
particular their work on the Transparency Code.
We continue to work closely with stakeholders, regulators and our peers to ensure the ongoing success of pooling.
Operational: People, process and systems risk The creation of a new regulated asset manager naturally brings challenges. New
policies, processes and systems need to be agreed, built and implemented.
Brunel acknowledged in the Original Business Case that the operational build-out in the timescales available would be a challenge
and this is indeed the case. The team focus is still on working hard to ensure robust and compliant processes are built, in place and
adhered to, underpinning our investment activities.

15

Pension Partnership

BUSINESS & FINANCIAL REVIEW
WHAT WE DO, AT A GLANCE
Brunel was set up to represent ten local authority pension schemes with ~712,000 members with pension assets
~£29bn and ~2,100 local employers (at 31 March 2018).

■
■
■

Brunel has ten shareholders, each with a ten percent share of the business
Brunel’s shareholders are Brunel’s client funds
Brunel is one of eight national Local Government Pension Scheme (LGPS) pools in England and Wales

BRUNEL will manage the investments for the pension funds of Avon, Buckinghamshire, Cornwall, Devon, Dorset,
Environment Agency, Gloucestershire, Oxfordshire, Somerset and Wiltshire.
Brunel is authorised and regulated by the Financial Conduct Authority as a full service MIFID firm. Clients have signed
a comprehensive services agreement with Brunel and we are rapidly building up our activities.

Page 57

Brunel believes in making long-term, sustainable investments supported by robust and transparent processes.
We offer our client funds a broad range of portfolio options with the aim of allowing them the flexibility to meet their
own investment strategy needs, while equipping us to manage risk and generate sustainable, long-term returns.

16

Pension Partnership

Brunel is set up with a structure of 24 portfolios (grouped
below), which allows clients flexibility to decide their Strategic Asset allocation and reflect market developments.

Each portfolio is outcome-based and intended to offer exposure
to a particular asset class or sub class, or particular theme or
approach.

Page 58

We offer a suite of portfolios specifically selected to
provide a reasonable level of consolidation, while at the
same time giving our clients the freedom to choose
how they allocate their assets.

Implementation of the portfolios will be outsourced to selected
asset managers, with between one and five managers per
portfolio.

Brunel’s investment team take a long-term view on
investment decisions which is aligned to our clients’
liability profiles and investment objectives.
As such, environment and social risk considerations,
along with good governance and stewardship, are
integrated into our decision-making processes.

1. Listed Markets, these portfolios cover active and passive
products.

PASSIVE EQUITIES & BONDS
(7 portfolios)

Brunel has three dedicated areas of investment specialism:

The active equities portfolios will be within our ACS, in which
Brunel is both the Sponsor and the delegated Portfolio Manager. This UK tax transparent vehicle allows our investors to
manage tax exposures and benefit from their own LGPS tax
status rather than that of a fund.
2. Private Markets have implemented their client offerings
much earlier than originally planned.
The appointment of Colmore, as middle- and back-office provider, is a milestone in enabling Brunel to act as a discretionary
multi-manager to its ten client funds.
Five portfolios spanning, property, infrastructure, secured
income, private equity and debt are in the process of being
launched.
3. Responsible Investment underpins both the listed and
private markets investment processes.
As of 30 September 2018, Brunel had c£6 billion invested in its
passive equities products.
Further details can be viewed on our website at:
www.brunelpensionpartnership.org/our-approach/
FORGING BETTER FUTURES

17

Pension Partnership

OUR VALUES & PURPOSE
CULTURE
BRUNEL’S VALUES
We are developing Brunel in such a way that the funds in the partnership will truly value it and benefit from all we do.
Our culture embraces customer service excellence. We will succeed because we are:
CLIENT-FOCUSED
Our clients are at the heart of everything we do.
Our team is dedicated to helping our clients meet their investment objectives.
We are guided by strong governance and a clear investment process.

Page 59

PROVIDING
Confidence in a team dedicated to helping you progress toward your objectives.
AN INVESTMENT PARTNER YOU CAN TRUST
We champion open and transparent communication with our clients and our peers.
We are innovative and forward-thinking with investment solutions.
We have a passion for the industry and are keen contributors to it.
PROVIDING
Clear understanding of where you are and of your future investment needs aligned to your interests.
A TEAM OF EXPERTS
We value transparency, honesty and excellence.
We believe in responsible citizenship and service to our community.
We have over 300 years of combined experience in investments and sustainable finance.
PROVIDING
Advice you can trust from a team that cares about your objectives and values.

18

Annual Report & Financial Statements

30 SEPTEMBER 2018

Pension Partnership

INVESTMENT PRINCIPLES
The primary objective of Brunel is to enable each LGPS fund in the partnership to
deliver its fiduciary duty to act in the best long-term interests of their members.
Brunel’s Investment Principles provide the framework for all investment
management and operations.
The principles meet the Ministry of Housing, Communities and Local Government’s
Local Government Pensions Scheme Investment Reform Criteria and Guidance
and expectations of the Financial Conduct Authority.
They can be applied to all asset classes, although the detail of operation will vary by
asset class.

Page 60

The principles do not impose any restrictions on type, nature of companies or assets
held within the Portfolios.
The principles do place an expectation that recognised best practice standards in
governance, risk management, stewardship and value for money will be delivered.
The principles are designed to ensure the effective and efficient delivery of each
fund’s investment strategy and are commensurate with the size of the combined
asset pool.
It is anticipated that the principles will support each fund in the delivery of their
investment strategy statements.

PRINCIPLES IN BRIEF
■ Long-term investors
■ Responsible investors
■ Best practice governance
■ Decisions informed through
experts and knowledgeable
officers and committees
■ Evidence and research
at heart of investments
■ Leadership and innovation
■ Right risk for right return
■ Full risk evaluation
■ Responsible stewardship
■ Cost-effective solutions

WE
WE ARE
BE LHERE
IEVE

WE ARE HERE

in making long-term,

In collaboration with all our

to protect the interests

sustainable investments
supported by robust and

stakeholders we are forging
better futures by investing

of our clients and their
beneficiaries

transparent processes

for a world worth living in.

■ Transparent and accountable
■ Collaboration

You can download these in full at
www.brunelpensionpartnership.
org/values/

Pension Partnership

OUR STRATEGY
At the highest level, our strategy is to realise our cultural values and apply our investment principles in order to
achieve Brunel’s objectives.
This includes making long-term investments to realise cumulative net savings of at least £550 million to the year
2036.
We will achieve this by establishing the agreed investment portfolios which allow our clients to achieve their
strategic investment objectives.
Fundamental to successful delivery of our objectives is to be an attractive employer in the southwest and
partner within the investment community.
We have an inclusive workplace, emphasising transparency and partnership.
In all dealings we are fair in decision-making, which is evidence-based.
We are a full scope MIFID firm, making long-term investments on behalf of our LGPS member funds.

Page 61

Our strategy is to be an efficient, controlled, regulated investment company that has a cohesive and constructive
partnership with our LGPS owners.
We operate in a regulated environment, which defines the parameters under which Brunel must operate.
We are owned by ten LGPS funds and understand our clients’ operating environment and their expectations
of Brunel.
Open and transparent communication underpins our relationships.
Efficiency and control are delivered f rom the small highly skilled team leveraging outsourced relationships,
technology, learning and development within risk tolerances.
Central to the investment strategy are rigorous competitive tender processes to ensure we achieve the best
client outcomes.
Acting responsibly is core to our approach and applies in all that we do.
Our strategy is to recognise broader financial risks, which in the long term will influence client outcomes,
outsourced relationships and expectations as well as Brunel’s behaviour and culture.

20

Annual Report & Financial Statements

30 SEPTEMBER 2018

Pension Partnership

OUR OBJECTIVES
The ten funds of Avon, Buckinghamshire, Cornwall, Devon, Dorset, the Environment Agency, Gloucestershire,
Oxfordshire, Somerset and Wiltshire came together as Brunel Pension Partnership following the directive
from government for LGPS pension funds in England and Wales to create assets pools of £25 billion.
The work started on developing the pools in September 2015 and by February 2017 the business case was approved
on the basis of the following four primary benefits and objectives:

■

Establish an investment management company and gain Financial Conduct Authority authorisation in
oder to be able to start servicing clients by April 2018. This was achieved in March 2018

■

Develop investment portfolios that will meet the needs of all its clients’ investment strategies, achieved
through our signed service agreement

Page 62

■

Make fee savings, while maintaining investment performance, of £27.8 million (8.9 basis points) by 2025,
further substantiated through a comprehensive planning cycle in 2018

■

Manage transition and operational costs to achieve break even by 2023, and cumulative net savings of
£550 million to 2036, further substantiated by a thorough review and update of the Original Business Case
throughout the summer of 2018.
The review brought into account lessons learnt from starting to deliver services since April 2018 and the successful
commercial outcomes of procuring investment managers for our first set of portfolios both in passive and active
equities.
The evidence so far enhances our confidence in delivering the net savings of £550 million to 2036 and is now
estimated to be up to £200 million more.

FORGING BETTER FUTURES

21

Pension Partnership

MILESTONES

■
■
■
■
■
■
■
Page 63

■
■
■
■
■

Moved into our new offices at 101 Victoria Street, Bristol on 09 October 2017
First Annual Report and Financial Statements for period ending 30 September 2017 presented to shareholders
at our first AGM, 31 January 2018
Partnership was further consolidated with all funds signing the service agreement and delegating selection of
managers to Brunel as their Investment Manager in February 2018
Financial Conduct Authority authorisation gained in March 2018
Development stage completed on 31 March 2018 at £0.5 million less than budgeted
Custodian State Street took on board nine of the LGPS funds’ assets under management and started administrative
services in July 2018
Launch and transition of c£6 billion assets under management into our five available Passive Equity portfolios,
of which only four were launched due to client allocations
ACS platform provider FundRock selected in June 2018
Ready to provide Private Markets services almost two years ahead of schedule
Recognised within the LGPS and Investment universe for approach to Responsible Investment and as leaders
and contributors to our industry
Brunel is in the process of implementing the following targets:
Transition of assets into the Low Volatility and UK Active Equity portfolios in the ACS
Integrating our Private Markets middle and back office provider to launch Brunel’s Private Markets portfolios

OVERALL FINANCIAL PERFORMANCE
CORPORATE PERFORMANCE
As planned, Brunel started to provide chargeable services to clients from April 2018.
The first six months of the year were the end of the Company development period, funded by capital.
Accordingly, Brunel reports a planned net loss for the period.
During the year ending 30 September 2018, Brunel provided a chargeable service to clients for six months only,
recognising revenues of £3.7m.
22

Annual Report & Financial Statements

30 SEPTEMBER 2018

Pension Partnership

Brunel’s total costs for the year were £4.9m, against an anticipated spend of £6.3m.
Revenues of £3.7m and total costs for the year of £4.9m represents a loss of £1.2m before tax.
During the year clients provided the second tranche of capital funding, providing an additional £5.4m.
This absorbed a pre-tax £1.2m loss for the year ending 30 September 2018, which had been anticipated.
The capital financing also provided a provision for regulatory capital, working capital and allowed Brunel to pay across a
planned and agreed £1m to fund the Brunel employee pension shortfall, associated with staff that transferred with LGPS
service from client funds.
The year-end cash balance was £5.5m.
During the year and in line with the Business Plan, Brunel achieved its key performance objectives for the year in terms of:

Page 64

■
■
■

developing the Company and achieving FCA authorisation status by 31 March 2018
the on boarding of nine LGPS clients with State Street Custodian.
the launch and transition of its passive equities’ portfolios in July 2018

The Company continues to adopt the going concern basis in preparing its financial statements.
The directors have a reasonable expectation that the Company has adequate resources to continue in operational
existence for at least twelve months f rom the date of approval of the financial statements.
This is explained further in the note 3 of the financial statements below.
Our approach to risk management, which has been taken into consideration in the preparation of this statement,
is explained in the Report f rom Chair of Audit, Risk and Compliance Committee.
CLIENT SAVINGS
Brunel’s permission granted by the FCA is only to control but not hold client money or assets. Accordingly, our Financial
Statements do not reflect client savings but given this is Brunel’s core purpose we have included some statements to
demonstrate progress.
The Original Business Case assumed net savings of £550m across its portfolios.
By the end of the calendar year we will have six available portfolios.
The estimated fee savings for these have exceeded the Original Business Case by over £70 million, cumulatively by 2036.
FORGING BETTER FUTURES

23

Pension Partnership

DISCLOSURES
Disclosures based on recommendations of the Task Force on Climate-related Financial Disclosures
MANAGING THE RISKS OF CLIMATE CHANGE
Brunel recognises climate change as a systemic risk to the economy, markets and society. It has the potential to significantly
impact on the investment returns of our portfolios and, therefore, on our partnership client funds.
As such, climate change has been identified as a strategic and investment priority.
Brunel advocates strongly for improved transparency and will disclose in line with the recommendations of the Task
Force on Climate-related Financial Disclosures (TCFD). We have summarised our approach below and commit to
developing more extensive disclosures as we roll out our investment strategy and operations.
GOVERNANCE

Page 65

Our commitment is communicated in our Responsible Investment and Stewardship Policies, which are approved by the
Brunel Board. The Board is collectively accountable, but operational accountability on a day-to-day basis is held by the
Chief Responsible Investment Officer.
Brunel’s Board, Executive and Investment team all strongly advocate for effective management of climate change
through speaking at events, sharing expertise and ensuring it is integrated into all our own investment and operation
practices.
STRATEGY
Brunel’s framework for assessing the impacts of climate change encompasses adaptation and physical risks (the risks
posed by the consequences of climatic change) as well those risks and opportunities arising from the transition to a low
carbon economy (risks from addressing the root causes of climate change).
We recognise the power of collaboration and are members of, among others, Climate Action 100+ and Principles for
Responsible Investment.
TASK FORCE ON CLIMATE-RELATED FINANCIAL DISCLOSURES RISK MANAGEMENT
Brunel does not support complete disinvestment, but is committed to decarbonising listed portfolios, providing carbon
foot printing to assist in reducing unrewarded carbon risk and low carbon portfolio opportunities for clients. Climate risk
is evaluated as part of all Brunel’s portfolios, across all asset classes.
Our Chief Responsible Investment Officer co-chairs the Transition Pathway Initiative (TPI) which assesses how listed
companies in high carbon sectors are preparing for the transition to a low-carbon economy.
This tool is used to evaluate risk of individual holdings and portfolios and to inform our stewardship activities.
24

Annual Report & Financial Statements

30 SEPTEMBER 2018

Pension Partnership

METRICS AND TARGETS
The investments that Brunel manages will form the most significant climate impact for the Partnership.
However, we are also committed to capturing emissions arising from our own operations.
The focus for 2019 is the design and implementation of mechanisms to capture all our climate-related metrics through
risk, accounting, investment and reporting systems at Brunel.

  For example:
■
■

Page 66

■
■

Capturing operational emissions data relating to travel, energy and water use
All manager selection and manager monitoring including the requirement to provide climate and carbon
risk analytics and encouraging disclosures based on the TCFD recommendations
Clear voting stance linked to annual engagement plan
Developing capabilities to provide the following information to each client fund:

    O Details and case studies of positive low carbon opportunities
    O Carbon foot printing of all listed portfolios
    O Fossil fuel exposure of all listed portfolios
    O Development of other carbon and climate change-related metrics for asset classes
  Once we have established the mechanisms to capture all the metrics required, Brunel will seek to set targets
appropriate to its sphere of influence.

FORGING BETTER FUTURES

25

Pension Partnership

OTHER DISCLOSURES: Gender Pay
Brunel has less than 250 employees, so is not required to disclose its gender pay gap.
However, as Brunel is committed to being transparent and an attractive employer the Remuneration Committee
have voluntarily disclosed gender pay gaps.
Brunel acknowledge a gender pay gap. This has occurred because the lower quartile entirely comprises female
members of staff.
Brunel is committed to giving staff opportunities to develop and this is most pertinent as a new company.
Several members of the team are on development contracts providing planned means to progress, which will contribute
to narrowing the gender pay gap.
We are proud to have a pipeline of talent with clear routes of development and progression for all.
We feel we demonstrate this simply with the 50/50 ratio of male and female in our Board membership.

Page 67

Brunel has reviewed gender pay equality and disclose that there is no gender pay inequality at senior and mid-level
responsibilities.
Where gender pay differentials occur, particularly within lower responsibility roles, they are understood and are
being addressed by development plans.
Brunel has, where possible, adopted hiring practises which have an awareness of the gender pay gap, are gender
balanced and look for a gender balanced cohort of candidates as well as seeking a balance on the much broader
range of diversity and inclusion considerations.
As of the snapshot date (31 March 2018) Brunel had 29 employees, which is a small sample and so the data is very
sensitive: e.g. a single position represents 3% of the population, and a quartile is just seven people.
Accordingly, small differences can make pronounced impacts on the outcomes.
As of the snapshot date Brunel had more female staff than male staff, which skews the median result.

26

Annual Report & Financial Statements

30 SEPTEMBER 2018

Pension Partnership

WOMEN'S MEAN HOURLY RATE:
Women’s mean hourly rate is 18% lower than men’s. In other words when comparing mean hourly rates, women
earn 82p for every £1 that men earn.
WOMEN'S MEDIAN HOURLY RATE:
Women’s median hourly rate is 43% lower than men’s.
When comparing median hourly rates, women earn 57p for every £1 that men earn.
NO STAFF RECEIVE BONUS PAY.
WOMEN MAKE UP THE FOLLOWING SHARE OF EACH QUARTILE:
   50% of Upper

Page 68

   57% of Upper Middle
   29% of Lower Middle
   100% of Lower
Brunel discloses a gender pay gap in alignment with the regulations.
Accordingly, this is as of 31 March 2018.
In the 2019 cycle our disclosure will be filed with the Government Equalities Office (GEO) in addition
to being included in this report.

FORGING BETTER FUTURES

27

Pension Partnership

AWARDS & AFFILIATIONS
We have a number of strategic partnerships and
affiliations across the business such as core markets,
private markets and responsible investment.
Our Responsible Investment partnership is founded
on our shared investment principles, which can be
found in the Responsible Investment (RI) Policy on
our website www.brunelpensionpartnership.org.
Our external partnerships and associations are
detailed in Annex 1 of the RI Policy.

Page 69

We are delighted and humbled that in our first year
our team and certain individuals have been recognised
for continued leadership within the LGPS and the investment and finance industry.

Pension Partnership

CIO Mark Mansley received the Funds Europe
award for CIO of the Year in the category of Institutional Manager
Chair Denise Le Gal won Outstanding Contribution of the Year at the LAPF Investment
awards

Page 70

Chair Denise Le Gal received the Pension
Personality of the Year at Institutional Investor’s
Peer-to-Peer Awards
At the same awards, Chief Responsible Investment
Officer (CRIO) Faith Ward received the award for
best ESG Programme on behalf of our Responsible
Investment team and Brunel as a whole.

CEO Dawn Turner received the prestigious
Industry Champion award at the 19th annual
Pension & Investment Provider Awards as well
as appearing in the Financial News’ top 100
most influential women in finance list for a
second year
CRIO Faith Ward was named as the person
who made the most positive industry contribution to SRI/Corporate Governance in the 2017
IRRI ranking.
Brunel was one of the five shortlisted organisations in the Finance for the Future’s Investing
and Financing awards.
Judges selected the amazing Fonkoze Financial
Services of Haiti as winners while stating that
Brunel is “one to watch.”

Pension Partnership

2. CORPORATE GOVERNANCE
GOVERNANCE STRUCTURE
MEMBERSHIP OF BOARD / COMMITTEES / ATTENDANCE
SHAREHOLDER GROUP ENGAGEMENT
STAKEHOLDER ENGAGEMENT
OPERATING MODEL
THE AUTHORISED CONTRACTUAL SCHEME (ACS)
PRIVATE MARKETS

Page 71

DIRECTORS’ REPORT
REPORT OF THE INDEPENDENT AUDITOR

Pension Partnership

BRUNEL GOVERNANCE

■ The Board of Brunel consists of four Independent Non-Executive Directors (NEDs), including the Chair,
and four Executive Directors

■ Independent Non-Executive Directors chair all Board sub-committees and are the only permanent members

■ Executive members of the Board are the CEO, CIO, COO and CCRO
■ The Board of Brunel has gender equality (four male / four female)
■ Oversight Board is one representative from each Pensions Committee (10 in total) & two member representative observers
■ Client Group is Client Fund Officers
Page 72

12

Pension Partnership

SHAREHOLDER GROUP ENGAGEMENT
There has been excellent engagement from our Shareholder Group, which has enabled Brunel to work in partnership
through a range of topics. This includes updating aspects of the Remuneration Policy, which is important to being able
to attract and retain talent, and the Pricing Policy, which explains how services will be charged to clients. It was also
agreed to accelerate the Private Markets offering. Lastly, shareholder approval of the revised Business Plan provides
the resource needed to deliver the service clients need.
During the year there have been five Brunel Oversight Board (BOB) meetings, which have all been attended by a
representative of each client fund.
During the year there have been 12 Client Group meetings, which have been attended by a representative of each
client fund with the exception of one client at one meeting. Agreed delegates from the Client Group also meet less
formally, to move technical topics forward.

Page 73

The engagement process enables both Client Group and BOB to carry out the responsibilities within their terms of
reference of representing the shareholders in oversight and assurance of Brunel.

STAKEHOLDER ENGAGEMENT
In addition to the required governance meetings, the Brunel team have held Investment Management engagement
days and a series of Stakeholder Engagement Days.
The Investment Management days were held in November 2017 to engage directly with the Investment Manager
community. The purpose was to outline our proposed timeline for engagement and the portfolio design. This gave the
Investment Managers clarity about when they could expect to hear from us and what we aim to achieve.
Stakeholder Engagement days were also held in November 2017 and planned for November 2018. These days have been
held at three locations across the geographical reach of the pool and gave pension committee and board members an
opportunity to directly engage with senior members of the Brunel team. The days focused on providing information
in relation to the annual business plan as well as providing information on the governance arrangements that provide
oversight and assurance on their behalf.

OPERATING MODEL
The main developments in Brunel’s operating model during the year are the decision to establish an Authorised
Contractual Scheme (ACS) and to bring forward the implementation of the Private Markets portfolios.

32

Annual Report & Financial Statements

30 SEPTEMBER 2018

Pension Partnership

THE AUTHORISED CONTRACTUAL SCHEME (ACS)
Brunel has a dual role of being both the sponsor and the appointed delegated portfolio manager.
In turn Brunel sub-delegates portfolio management to appointed third-party managers.
FundRock retains overall regulatory responsibility for Risk Management of the vehicle and, while delegating
portfolio management, is ultimately accountable to the FCA for the vehicle.
State Street play a critical role, as the depositary must ensure that the securities within the vehicle are held
secure, record keeping is accurate, and the fund is operating within agreed parameters.
DST, the transfer agent, enables transacting with the fund in a controlled manner.
The close partnership within this regulatory construct allows clients to be confident the ACS will operate in a
controlled way, providing efficiency in operations and tax treatment.
SPONSOR

OPERATOR

Page 74

DEPOSITORY

INVESTMENT
MANAGER

TRANSFER
AGENT

FUND ACCOUNTANT

CUSTODIAN

DISCRETIONARY BASICS

SECURITIES

SELECT, MONITOR & ALLOCATE
THIRD PARTY MANAGERS

OPERATING MODEL
The Authorised Contractual Scheme (ACS)

Pension Partnership

PRIVATE MARKETS
Brunel’s Private Markets offering was planned to start from 2020.
Private Markets team recruitment was completed by May 2018 with the full complement of five staff dedicated to
managing private markets investments.
The team has significantly accelerated plans and therefore savings.
The top priority of the private markets team was to launch the five distinct Portfolios outlined in the Client Service
Agreement.
These are:
■ INFRASTRUCTURE   ■ PRIVATE EQUITY   ■ PRIVATE DEBT   ■ PROPERTY   ■ SECURED INCOME

The specification for each of these Portfolios was agreed with Client Group.

Page 75

Given the amount of new money and estimated unwind f rom existing holdings, Brunel will pursue a single Portfolio
per asset class to maximise and preserve the benefits of scale that pooling has created.
All investments will be in line with Brunel’s company-wide Responsible Investment policy.
Having assessed the various possible delivery methods, client needs and feedback (where given), the knowledge acquired during the ACS Operator procurement and the model employed by incumbent providers on behalf of Brunel
clients, Brunel has chosen to act as a discretionary multi-manager to its ten client funds, not as a General Partner of a
formal Limited Partnership vehicle.
The private markets team will build a portfolio of investments as detailed in individual Portfolio Briefing Notes.
Each client will effectively have a separate account with Brunel providing a complete solution from investment origination to post-investment monitoring.
Clients will be committed to investments pro-rata and in their own name. To deliver this fully discretionary service
Brunel needs to outsource certain key functions. This is in keeping with Brunel’s corporate operating model.
The chosen operating model gives Brunel the flexibility to tailor future investments to existing client holdings and
gives Brunel the ability to opt clients out of investments that would conflict with documented client fund guidelines.
The diagram depicts Brunel’s operating model, governance and oversight by the Investment function.
The Investment team is subject to Brunel’s overarching governance arrangements as necessitated to comply with FCA
authorisation.
34

Annual Report & Financial Statements

30 SEPTEMBER 2018

Pension Partnership

PRIVATE MARKETS TEAM
■ Investment Review Group made up of Brunel’s PM Team of 5
■ Input from CIO & CRIO on an ongoing ad-hoc basis,
prior to taking opportunities to wider BIC

PORTFOLIO & RISK MANAGEMENT ADVISOR
PM TEAM & BIC INVESTMENT UNDERWRITING:
■ Sourcing
■ Due diligence
■ Investment recommendations
■ Legal negotiations

Page 76

PORTFOLIO CONSTRUCTION
■ Pacing analysis
■ Forward calendar
■ House view
■ Sourcing
■ Screening
■ Due diligence
■ Portfolio rebalancing

■

Capital allocation
and pacing recommendation,
  market overview

BIC
■ Entire Brunel Investment team both Public & Private Markets,
plus members of Operations, Risk, Client Relations

■

BIC approves all investment:
Input from SIC & Client Investment Sub-Group as required

MID & BACK OFFICE ADMINISTRATOR
INVESTMENT MANAGEMENT
■ Communication with other LPs
■ Quarterly monitoring report
■ Company level performance
■ Capital calls
■ Manager, market
& company level updates
■ Review of quarterly financials

■

Monitor existing portfolio
and develop portfolio insights

RISK, RESEARCH, ANALYTICS
& PERFORMANCE

■ Portfolio diversification
■ Purchase price multiple
■ Market overview
■ Capital allocation and pacing
■ Performance attribution
■ Benchmark
■ Risk analysis

NOTE: BRUNEL Investment Committee (BIC), is the operational committee below the Strategic Investment Committee (SIC).
FORGING BETTER FUTURES

35

Pension Partnership

DIRECTORS’ REPORT
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 SEPTEMBER 2018
The directors of Brunel Pension Partnership Limited (Brunel) present their report and the financial statements
for the year ended 30 September 2018.
DIRECTORS' RESPONSIBILITIES STATEMENT
The directors are responsible for preparing the Directors' report and the financial statements in accordance with
applicable law and regulations.
Company law requires the directors to prepare financial statements for each financial year.
Under that law the directors have elected to prepare the financial statements in accordance with applicable law
and United Kingdom Accounting Standards (United Kingdom Generally Accepted Accounting Practice), including
Financial Reporting Standard 102 ‘The Financial Reporting Standard applicable in the UK and Republic of Ireland'.

Page 77

Under Company law the directors must not approve the financial statements unless they are satisfied that they give a
true and fair view of the state of affairs of the Company and of the profit or loss of the Company for that period.
In preparing these financial statements, the directors are required to:

O select suitable accounting policies for the Company financial statements and then apply them consistently
O make judgements and accounting estimates that are reasonable and prudent, and
O prepare the financial statements on the going concern basis unless it is inappropriate to presume that
the Company will continue in business

The directors are responsible for keeping adequate accounting records that are sufficient to show and explain the
Company's transactions and disclose with reasonable accuracy at any time the financial position of the Company
and enable them to ensure that the financial statements comply with the Companies Act 2006.
They are also responsible for safeguarding the assets of the Company and hence for taking reasonable steps for the
prevention and detection of f raud and other irregularities.
Section 31 of the Company’s Articles of Association outlines an indemnity provision for all directors and relevant officers.
The Company also has in place Directors & Officers Professional Indemnity Insurance to provide an amount of cover
for any relevant loss.
36

Annual Report & Financial Statements

30 SEPTEMBER 2018

Pension Partnership

RESULTS AND DIVIDENDS
The loss for the year, after taxation, amounted to £2,117,182 (2017: £2,335,338).
No dividends were paid during the year (2017: nil) and no recommendation is made to pay a final dividend.
EXPECTED FUTURE DEVELOPMENTS
Expected future developments are set out in the strategic report.
This includes the launch and transitioning of the UK Active Equity, Low Volatility this calendar year, with the
development of the Emerging Markets and Developed High Alpha portfolios for Active Equity following these.
The Private Markets team will continue to research and find managers for portfolios which include Secured Income, Infrastructure, and Private Equities of which Clients have already committed £1,061 million.

Page 78

POLITICAL OR CHARITABLE DONATIONS
During the financial year the Company did not make any political or charitable donations.
Brunel staff have selected a charity to support each year and donations come directly from people within
Brunel and any external supporters rather than direct f rom Brunel itself.
DIRECTORS
The directors who served during the year and their appointment / resignation dates were:

NAME:					APPOINTED:		RESIGNED:
Denise Marie-Reine Le Gal

18 July 2017			

-

Michael John Clark			

18 July 2017			

-

Stephen John Tyson			

18 July 2017			

-

Frederique Pierre-Pierre		

18 July 2017			

-

Dawn Suzanne Turner		

18 July 2017			

-

Laura Jane Chappell			

18 July 2017			

-

Mark Robert Mansley		

18 July 2017			

-

Joseph Andrew Webster		

01 October 2017		

-

FORGING BETTER FUTURES

37

Pension Partnership

BOARD ATTENDANCE
The list below shows the attendance at board meetings by board directors during the year.
There were 5 formal Board meetings held during the financial year ending 30 September 2018.

Page 79
PENSION SCHEME
The Company participates as an Admitted Body in the
Wiltshire Pension Fund (the ‘Fund’) which operates a
defined benefit pension scheme.
As at 30 September 2018, the actuary has reported a
pension deficit of £454,000.

38

Annual Report & Financial Statements

Pension Partnership

DISCLOSURE OF INFORMATION TO AUDITOR
Each of the persons who are directors at the time when this Directors' report is approved has confirmed that:

O so far as that director is aware, there is no relevant audit information of which the Company's auditor is unaware, and
O that director has taken all the steps that ought to have been taken as a director in order to be aware
of any relevant audit information and to establish that the Company's auditor is aware of that information

POST BALANCE SHEET EVENTS
There have been no significant events that affect the Company since the 30 September 2018.
INDEPENDENT AUDITORS
At the Annual General Meeting held on 31 January 2018, Grant Thornton UK LLP was reappointed as auditor of the
Company, in accordance with s487 of the Companies Act 2006.

Page 80

Grant Thornton UK LLP have expressed their willingness to continue in office as auditor.
Following the finalisation of the 2017-18 external audit, Grant Thornton UK LLP will be proposed for reappointment as
auditor of the Company at the Annual General Meeting on 31 January 2019.
This report was approved by the Board on 13 December 2018 and signed on its behalf.

Joe WEBSTER
Director and Chief Operating Officer
07 January 2019

Pension Partnership

REPORT OF THE INDEPENDENT AUDITOR
INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT TO THE MEMBERS OF BRUNEL PENSION PARTNERSHIP LIMITED
OPINION
We have audited the financial statements of Brunel Pension Partnership Limited (the ‘Company’) for the year ended
30 September 2018, which comprise of the Statement of Total Comprehensive Income, the Statement of Financial
Position, the Statement of Cash Flows, the Statement of Changes in Equity and notes to the financial statements,
including a summary of significant accounting policies. The financial reporting framework that has been applied in
their preparation is applicable law and United Kingdom Accounting Standards, including Financial Reporting Standard
102; The Financial Reporting Standard applicable in the UK and Republic of Ireland (United Kingdom Generally Accepted
Accounting Practice).
In our opinion, the financial statements:

Page 81

O

give a true and fair view of the state of the Company’s affairs as at 30 September 2018 and of its loss
for the year then ended;

O

have been properly prepared in accordance with United Kingdom Generally Accepted Accounting Practice; and

O

have been prepared in accordance with the requirements of the Companies Act 2006.

BASIS FOR OPINION
We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (UK) (ISAs (UK)) and applicable law. Our
responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the financial
statements section of our report. We are independent of the Company in accordance with the ethical requirements that
are relevant to our audit of the financial statements in the UK, including the FRC’s Ethical Standard, and we have fulfilled
our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements. We believe that the audit evidence we have
obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.
WHO WE ARE REPORTING TO
This report is made solely to the Company’s members, as a body, in accordance with Chapter 3 of Part 16 of the Companies Act 2006. Our audit work has been undertaken so that we might state to the Company’s members those matters
we are required to state to them in an auditor’s report and for no other purpose. To the fullest extent permitted by law,
we do not accept or assume responsibility to anyone other than the Company and the Company’s members as a body,
for our audit work, for this report, or for the opinions we have formed.
40

Annual Report & Financial Statements

30 SEPTEMBER 2018

Pension Partnership

CONCLUSIONS RELATING TO GOING CONCERN
We have nothing to report in respect of the following matters in relation to which the ISAs (UK) require us to report
to you where:

•

the directors’ use of the going concern basis of accounting in the preparation of the financial statements is not
appropriate; or

•

the directors have not disclosed in the financial statements any identified material uncertainties that may cast
    significant doubt about the Company’s ability to continue to adopt the going concern basis of accounting for a
    period of at least 12 months from the date when the financial statements are authorised for issue.
OTHER INFORMATION
The directors are responsible for the other information.

Page 82

The other information comprises the information included in the financial statements, other than the financial
statements and our auditor’s report thereon.
Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and, except to the extent otherwise
explicitly stated in our report, we do not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.
In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing
so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the financial statements or our knowledge
obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated.
If we identify such material inconsistencies or apparent material misstatements, we are required to determine whether there is a material misstatement in the financial statements or a material misstatement of the other information.
If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other information,
we are required to report that fact.
We have nothing to report in this regard.
OPINIONS ON OTHER MATTERS PRESCRIBED BY THE COMPANIES ACT 2006
In our opinion, based on the work undertaken in the course of the audit:

•

the information given in the strategic report and the directors’ report for the financial year for which the financial
statements are prepared is consistent with the financial statements; and

•

the strategic report and the directors’ report has been prepared in accordance with applicable legal requirements.
FORGING BETTER FUTURES

41

Pension Partnership

MATTER ON WHICH WE ARE REQUIRED TO REPORT UNDER THE COMPANIES ACT 2006
In the light of the knowledge and understanding of the Company and its environment obtained in the course
of the audit, we have not identified material misstatements in the strategic report or the directors’ report.
MATTERS ON WHICH WE ARE REQUIRED TO REPORT BY EXCEPTION
We have nothing to report in respect of the following matters in relation to which the Companies Act 2006
requires us to report to you if, in our opinion:

Page 83

•

adequate accounting records have not been kept, or returns adequate for our audit
have not been received f rom branches not visited by us; or

•

the financial statements are not in agreement with the accounting records and returns; or

•

certain disclosures of directors’ remuneration specified by law are not made; or

•

we have not received all the information and explanations we require for our audit.

RESPONSIBILITIES OF DIRECTORS FOR THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
As explained more fully in the directors’ responsibilities statement set out on page 36 the directors are responsible for the preparation of the financial statements and for being satisfied that they give a true and
fair view, and for such internal control as the directors determine is necessary to enable the preparation of
financial statements that are free f rom material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.
In preparing the financial statements, the directors are responsible for assessing the Company’s ability to
continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going
concern basis of accounting unless the directors either intend to liquidate the Company or to cease operations, or have no realistic alternative but to do so.

42

Annual Report & Financial Statements

30 SEPTEMBER 2018

Pension Partnership

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are free
from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our
opinion.
Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance
with ISAs (UK) will always detect a material misstatement when it exists.
Misstatements can arise f rom f raud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate,
they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these
financial statements.
A further description of our responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements is located on the Financial
Reporting Council’s website at: www.frc.org.uk/auditorsresponsibilities.
This description forms part of our auditor’s report.

Page 84

Paul FLATLEY
Senior Statutory Auditor
for and on behalf of Grant Thornton UK LLP
Statutory Auditor, Chartered Accountants
30 Finsbury Square, London, EC2A 1AG
07 January 2018

Pension Partnership

3. FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
STATEMENT OF TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Page 85

Pension Partnership

STATEMENT OF TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
Brunel Pension Partnership Limited
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 SEPTEMBER 2018
N OT E

201 8
£

TU RNOVER

FROM 18 JULY TO
30 SEPTEMBER 2017

£

3,752 , 325

-

( 1 , 3 1 2 , 28 5 )

-

2 , 4 4 0,04 0

-

( 3 ,6 57,41 3 )

( 2 , 8 06 ,1 8 3 )

(834)

( 26 4 )

( 1 , 2 1 8 , 207)

( 2 , 8 06 , 4 47)

1 70,06 5

47 1 ,1 09

Loss for the year/period

( 1 ,04 8 ,1 42)

( 2 , 335 , 33 8 )

OT HER COMPREHENS IVE I N CO M E

( 1 ,04 8 ,1 42 )

( 2 , 335 , 33 8 )

Cost of sales

14

Page 86

G ROSS PROFIT
Administrative expenses

15

Finance charges
LOSS B EFORE TAXATI O N
Taxation

19

Actuarial gains and losses

21

( 1 , 28 8 ,000)

-

Tax on items of other comprehensive income

19

21 8 , 9 6 0

-

( 2 ,1 1 7,1 8 2 )

( 2 , 335 , 33 8 )

TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE INCOME FOR THE YEAR/PERIOD

Pension Partnership

STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
Brunel Pension Partnership Limited
AS AT 30 SEPTEMBER 2018

NOTE

2018

2017

£

£

ASS ETS
NON-CURRENT ASSETS

Page 87

Tangible assets

8

33 0, 924

28 8 ,6 9 6

Intangible assets

9

222 , 202

-

Long term debtors

10

49,750

49,75 0

6 02 , 8 76

33 8 , 4 4 6

19

8 6 0,1 3 4

479, 9 9 0

Debtors

11

9 6 2 ,453

1 1 0, 24 0

Cash at bank

12

5 , 5 00, 8 3 8

2 ,45 4 ,1 8 5

TOTAL

6 , 4 6 3 , 2 91

2 , 5 6 4 , 42 5

TOTAL ASSETS

7, 926 , 3 01

3,382,861

TOTAL
Deferred tax asset

CURRENT ASSETS

LIA B ILITIES
CURRENT LIABILITIES

46

Creditors: amounts falling due within one year

13

3 ,43 4 , 8 21

2 ,709, 3 1 8

Deferred tax

19

-

8,881

3 , 43 4 , 8 2 1

2 ,7 1 8 ,1 9 9

TOTA L

Pension Partnership

NOTE

2018

2017

£

£

NON- CURRENT LIA BI L I T I E S

Page 88

Net defined benefit obligations

21

45 4 ,000

-

Provisions for other liabilities

20

9 0,000

-

TOTA L

5 4 4 ,000

-

TOTA L LIA B ILITIES

3 , 978 , 8 2 1

2 ,7 1 8 ,1 9 9

NET CURRENT A SSETS

3 ,02 8 , 470

( 1 53 ,774 )

NET A SSETS

3 , 9 47, 4 8 0

6 6 4 ,6 6 2

EQUITY
CAPITAL AND RESERVES
Called up share capital

22

20

10

Share premium account

22

8 , 3 9 9, 9 8 0

2 , 9 9 9, 9 9 0

Retained earnings

23

(4 ,452 ,520)

( 2 , 335 , 33 8 )

3 , 9 47, 4 8 0

6 6 4 ,6 6 2

TOTA L EQUITY
The financial statements were approved by the board on 13 December 2018
and signed on its behalf on 07 January 2019

Joe WEBSTER
Director and Chief Operating Officer
07 January 2019
FORGING BETTER FUTURES

47

Pension Partnership

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
Brunel Pension Partnership Limited
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 SEPTEMBER 2018
N OT E

201 8

From 18 JULY TO
30 SEPTEMBER
2017

£

£

( 1 ,04 8 ,1 42)

( 2 , 335 , 33 8 )

CASH FLOWS USED IN OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Total comprehensive income for the year/period

Page 89

ADJUSTMENTS FO R:
D epreciatio n o f tan gib l e asse ts

8

92 ,491

9 45

Am o r tisation o f intan g i bl e asse ts

9

3 8 , 5 42

-

Ta xatio n

19

( 1 70,06 5 )

(47 1 ,1 09 )

10 & 11

( 8 52 , 21 4 )

( 1 5 9, 9 9 0)

13

725 , 5 03

2 ,709, 3 1 8

( 8 3 4 ,000)

-

( 2 ,047, 8 8 5 )

( 2 5 6 ,1 74 )

-

-

( 2 ,047, 8 8 5 )

( 2 5 6 ,1 74 )

D ecrease / (in creas e) i n tra de an d o th er de bto rs
In crease / (decrease) i n c redi to rs
POST-EMPLOYMEN T BE NE FITS L E SS PAYM E NTS
CASH FROM O PERATI O N S
INCOME TAXES PA ID
NET CA SH USED IN OPE R AT I N G ACT IVI T I ES

48

Annual Report & Financial Statements

30 SEPTEMBER 2018

Pension Partnership

N OT E

201 8

From 18 JULY TO
30 SEPTEMBER
2017

£

£

CASH FLOWS U SE D I N I NVESTI NG ACTIVI TI ES

Page 90

Purchas e o f tan g ibl e asse ts

8

(4 4 ,7 1 9 )

( 28 9,6 41 )

Purchas e o f intan g i bl e asse ts

9

( 26 0,74 4 )

-

( 3 05 , 4 6 3 )

( 2 8 9,6 41 )

5 , 4 00,000

3 ,000,000

NET CA SH GENERAT E D F R O M F I N A N C I N G EQ U IVA LE N TS

5 , 4 00,000

3 ,000,000

NET INC REA SE IN CA SH A N D CA SH EQ UIVA LE N TS

3 ,04 6 ,6 53

2 , 45 4 ,1 8 5

CA SH A ND CA SH EQ U IVA L E N TS
AT THE BEGINNING O F T H E YEA R /PE R I O D

2 , 45 4 ,1 8 5

-

CA SH A ND CA SH EQ U IVA L E N TS
AT THE END O F THE YE A R /PE R I O D

5 , 5 00, 8 3 8

2 , 45 4 ,1 8 5

NET CA SH USED IN I NVEST I N G ACT IVI T I ES

CASH FLOWS FR OM FI NANCI NG ACTIVI TI ES
I s s u e of ord in ar y share capital

FORGING BETTER FUTURES

49

Pension Partnership

STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
Brunel Pension Partnership Limited
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 SEPTEMBER 2018

SHARE CAPITAL

SHARE PREMIUM

RETAINED EARNINGS

TOTAL

£

£

£

£

10

2 , 999, 990

-

3 ,000,000

Loss for the period

-

-

( 2 , 335 , 33 8 )

( 2 , 335 , 33 8 )

Balance at 01 October 2017

10

2 , 999, 990

( 2 , 335 , 33 8 )

6 6 4 ,6 6 2

Issue of share capital

10

5 , 399, 990

-

5 , 4 00,000

Loss for the year

-

-

( 2 ,1 1 7,1 8 2)

( 2 ,1 1 7,1 8 2 )

20

8 , 3 9 9, 98 0

(4 , 452 , 520)

3 , 9 47, 4 8 0

Issue of share capital

Page 91

BALANCE
AT 30 SEPTEMBER 2018
Please see note 23 and 24 below.

50

Annual Report & Financial Statements

30 SEPTEMBER 2018

Pension Partnership

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Brunel Pension Partnership Limited
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 SEPTEMBER 2018
1.

COMPANY INFORMATION
The Company is a private company limited by shares and is registered in England and Wales.
Registered Number: 10429110
Registered office: 101 Victoria Street, Bristol, BS1 6PU
Authorised and regulated by the Financial Conduct Authority No. 790168

2.

STATEMENT OF COMPLIANCE

Page 92

During the year the company obtained authorisation f rom the FCA as a MIFID firm based on which it has become
ineligible to take small companies’ exemptions. Accordingly, these financial statements have been prepared in
accordance with applicable United Kingdom accounting standards, including Financial Reporting Standard 102
- ''The Financial Reporting Standard applicable in the United Kingdom and Republic of Ireland'' (''FRS 102''), and
with the Companies Act 2006. The financial statements have been prepared on the historical cost basis except
for the modification to a fair value basis for certain defined benefit plan financial instruments as specified in the
accounting policies below. Financial statements are presented in Sterling (£).
3.

GOING CONCERN
The Company continues to adopt the going concern basis in preparing its financial statements.
The Company meets its day-to-day working capital requirements through current cash levels and agreed capital
funding. The service model launched in April 2018 defined a cost-plus basis which is to be received in advance of
delivering the service.
The Company's forecasts and projections, taking account of reasonably possible changes in trading performances,
show that the Company should be able to operate within the level of its current cash levels.
The directors have a reasonable expectation that the Company has adequate resources to continue in operational
existence for at least twelve months f rom the approval of the financial statements. Thus, they continue to adopt
the going concern basis of accounting in preparing the annual financial statements.
FORGING BETTER FUTURES

51

Pension Partnership

4.

PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES

4.1

TANGIBLE ASSETS
Tangible fixed assets are measured at cost less accumulated depreciation and any accumulated impairment losses.
Depreciation is calculated to write down the cost less estimated residual value of all tangible fixed assets, other
than freehold land, over their expected useful lives, using the straight-line method.
The rates applicable are:

4.2

•

Computer hardware		

3 years

•

Furniture and equipment

5 years

INTANGIBLE ASSETS
Intangible assets are measured at cost less accumulated amortisation and any accumulated impairment losses.

Page 93

Amortisation is charged so as to allocate the cost of intangibles less their residual values over the estimated
useful lives, using the straight-line method.
The Internal Control Environment is a bespoke software application that has been developed for Brunel
on the Salesforce platform.
The cost of this has been amortised over the term of the contract with Salesforce ending on 30/11/2020,
using the straight-line method and forms a charge within the Administration Expenses.
4.3

IMPAIRMENT OF ASSETS
At each reporting date fixed assets are reviewed to determine whether there is any indication that those
assets have suffered an impairment loss. If there is an indication of possible impairment, the recoverable
amount of any affected asset is estimated and compared with its carrying amount. If estimated recoverable
amount is lower, the carrying amount is reduced to its estimated recoverable amount, and an impairment
loss is recognised immediately in profit or loss.
If an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the carry amount of the asset is increased to the revised estimate of
its recoverable amount, but not in excess of the amount that would have been determined had no impairment
loss been recognised for the asset in prior years. A reversal of an impairment loss is recognised immediately in
profit or loss.

52

Annual Report & Financial Statements

30 SEPTEMBER 2018

Pension Partnership

4.4

DEBTORS
Short term debtors are measured at transaction price, less any impairment. Loans receivable are measured
initially at fair value, net of transaction costs, and are measured subsequently at amortised cost using the
effective interest method, less any impairment.

4.5

CREDITORS
Short term trade creditors are measured at the transaction price. Other financial liabilities, including bank
loans, are measured initially at fair value, net of transaction costs, and are measured subsequently at amortised
cost using the effective interest method.

4.6

LEASES
Leases are classified as finance leases whenever the terms of the lease transfer substantially all the risks and
rewards of ownership of the leased asset to the Company. All other leases are classified as operating leases.

Page 94

Payments under operating leases are charged to the Statement of Total Comprehensive Income on a straight-line
basis over the period of the lease. Lease incentives are credited to the Statement of Total Comprehensive Income to
reduce the lease expense on a straight-line basis over the period of the lease.
4.7

PENSIONS
The Company participates in a defined benefit plan administered by Wiltshire Council. A defined benefit plan
defines the pension benefit that the employee will receive on retirement usually dependent upon several factors
including but not limited to age, length of service and remuneration.
The liability recognised in the Balance sheet in respect of the defined benefit plan is the estimated present
value of the Company’s share of the estimated defined benefit obligation at the balance sheet date less the
Company’s share of the fair value of plan assets at the balance sheet date out of which the obligations are to
be met.
The defined benefit obligation is calculated using the projected unit credit method. Annually the company
engages independent actuaries to estimate the defined benefit obligation.
The fair value of plan assets is measured in accordance with the FRS102 fair value hierarchy and in accordance
with the company’s policy for similarly held assets. This includes the use of appropriate valuation techniques.
Actuarial gains and losses arising f rom experience adjustments and changes in actuarial assumptions are
charged or credited to other comprehensive income.
FORGING BETTER FUTURES

53

Pension Partnership
(4.7

PENSIONS Continued)

The cost of the defined benefit plan, recognised in profit or loss as employee costs, except where included in the
cost of an asset, compromises:
a) The increase in net pension benefit liability arising from employee service (including transfers received)
during the period; and
b) The cost of plan introductions, benefit changes, curtailments and settlements
The net interest cost is calculated by applying the discount rate to the net balance of the defined benefit obligation and the fair value of the Company’s share of plan assets. This cost is recognised in the Statement of Comprehensive Income within admin expenses.
4.8

PROVISIONS FOR LIABILITIES

Provisions are recognised when the Company has a present obligation (legal or constructive) as a result of a past
event, it is probable that the Company will be required to settle the obligation, and a reliable estimate can be
made of the amount of the obligation.

Page 95

The amount recognised as a provision is the best estimate of the consideration required to settle the present
obligation at the end of the reporting period, taking into account the risks and uncertainties surrounding the
obligation.
Where the effect of the time value of money is material, the amount expected to be required to settle the obligation is recognised at present value using a pre-tax discount rate. The unwinding of the discount is recognised
as a finance cost in profit or loss in the period it arises.
4.9

TAXATION

Current tax is recognised for the amount of income tax payable in respect of the taxable profit for the current
or past reporting periods using the tax rates and laws that that have been enacted or substantively enacted by
the reporting date.
Deferred tax is recognised in respect of all timing differences at the reporting date, except as otherwise indicated.
Deferred tax assets are only recognised to the extent that it is probable that they will be recovered against the
reversal of deferred tax liabilities or other future taxable profits. Brunel’s business plan stipulates that revenues
will be earnt on a cost-plus basis, defining the income as probable.
If and when all conditions for retaining tax allowances for the cost of a fixed asset have been met, the deferred
tax is reversed.
54

Annual Report & Financial Statements

30 SEPTEMBER 2018

Pension Partnership

4.9

Deferred tax is calculated using the tax rates and laws that have been enacted or substantively enacted by
the reporting date that are expected to apply to the reversal of the timing difference.
The tax expense (income) is presented either in profit or loss, other comprehensive income or equity depending
on the transaction that resulted in the tax expense (income).

4.10

TURNOVER
Turnover is measured at the fair value of the consideration received or receivable, net of discounts and value
added taxes. Turnover comprises of budgeted cost plus a mark-up of 5% as agreed in the Services Agreement
with clients.

4.11

EQUITY
Equity instruments issued by the company are recorded at a level representing the value of the proceeds
received. Share capital represents the nominal value of shares that have been issued.

Page 96

5.

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY
The preparation of the Company financial statements requires management to make judgements and estimates.
The items in the financials where these judgements and estimates have been made include:
Deferred taxation
The financial statements include estimates with regards to timing of future cashflows with respect to deferred
taxation as disclosed in note 4.9 and 19.
Pension Valuation
Estimations of the net liability to pay pensions depends on a number of complex judgements relating to the
discount rate used, the rate at which salaries are projected to increase, changes in retirement ages, mortality
rates and expected returns on pension fund assets.
An actuary is engaged to provide the Company with expert advice about the assumptions to be applied.
However, because these judgements cannot be determined with certainty, actual results could be materially
different from the assumptions and estimates.
Note 4.7 and 21 detail this further.
Restoration Provision
The financial statements include an estimate in relation to our site restoration obligations.
Details relating to this are detailed in note 20.
FORGING BETTER FUTURES

55

Pension Partnership

6.

AUDITORS REMUNERATION
Fees payable to the Company’s auditor for the audit of the Company’s
annual financial statements totalled £40,000 (2017: £40,000) ex VAT.
Fees payable to the Company’s auditor in respect of other audit related services were £7,500 (2017: £nil) ex VAT.
These services relate to the provision of a client assets report to the Financial Conduct Authority.

7.

DIRECTORS AND EMPLOYEES
Staff costs during the year were as follows:

Page 97

2018

201 7

£

£

Wages and salaries

1 , 5 0 6 ,0 93

6 2 ,676

Social security costs

1 80,783

7,7 1 1

Other pension costs

262 , 2 1 2

8 , 5 47

1, 949,0 8 8

78 , 93 4

The Company operates a defined benefit pension scheme for the benefit of the employees and executive directors.
The assets of the scheme are administered by the Wiltshire Pension Fund.
Pension payments recognised as an expense during the year amount to £429,414 (2017: £8,547).
Employee contributions are recognised as an expense during the year, these amount to £262,212 (2017: £8,547).
Not included in these tables are FRS102 pension cost adjustments made at the 2018 year end that bring
the expense to £429,413 (2017: nil).
The average number of employees, including directors, during the year was 23 (2017: 1).

56

Annual Report & Financial Statements

30 SEPTEMBER 2018

Pension Partnership

Remuneration in respect of key personnel was as follows:
201 8

201 7

£

£

45 9,778

-

Social security costs

57, 20 8

-

Pension contributions to defined benefit scheme

77,4 6 9

-

59 4 , 455

-

201 8

201 7

£

£

67 1 , 8 75

7 9, 203

Social security costs

8 3 , 53 1

9, 8 04

Pension contributions to defined benefit scheme

8 3 ,1 9 0

7, 8 4 6

838,596

9 6 , 8 53

Emoluments

Remuneration in respect of directors was as follows:

Page 98

Emoluments

The amounts set out above include remuneration in respect of the highest paid director as follows:
201 8

201 7

£

£

1 25 ,000

1 1 , 25 0

Social security costs

1 6 ,1 06

1 ,45 9

Pension contributions to defined benefit scheme

2 2 ,1 25

1 , 9 91

16 3 , 2 3 1

1 4 ,700

Emoluments

FORGING BETTER FUTURES

57

Pension Partnership

8.

TANGIBLE FIXED ASSETS
F UR N I TU R E
A N D EQ UI PM E NT

CO M PUT E R
H ARDWARE

TOTA L

£

£

£

24 8 , 519

41 ,1 2 2

2 8 9,6 41

1 1 1 , 945

22 ,774

1 3 4 ,7 1 9

-

-

-

3 6 0, 46 4

63,896

424 , 3 6 0

AT 01 OCTOBER 2017

-

9 45

9 45

Provided in the year

7 2 ,666

1 9, 8 25

92 , 491

-

-

-

7 2 ,6 66

20,7 70

93 , 43 6

NET BOOK VALUE AT 30 SEPTEMBER 2018

28 7,7 9 8

43 ,1 26

33 0, 924

NET BOOK VALUE AT 30 SEPTEMBER 2017

24 8 , 519

4 0,1 77

2 8 8 ,6 9 6

COST
AT 01 OCTOBER 2017
Additions *
Disposals

Page 99

AT 30 SEPTEMBE R 2018
DEPREC IATION

Disposals
AT 30 SEPTEMBER 2018

* Includes £90,000 on account of estimated cost of site restoration obligations included in Furniture and Equipment.

58

Annual Report & Financial Statements

30 SEPTEMBER 2018

Pension Partnership

9.

INTANGIBLE FIXED ASSETS
INTERNAL
CONTROL ENVIRONMENT

TOTA L

£

£

-

-

Additio ns

26 0,74 4

26 0,74 4

Dispo sals

-

-

26 0,74 4

26 0,74 4

AT 01 O CTOBER 2017

-

-

Prov ided in th e year

3 8 , 5 42

3 8 , 5 42

-

-

3 8 , 5 42

3 8 , 5 42

NET BO O K VA LU E AT 3 0 SEPT EM BER 2018

2 2 2 , 202

2 2 2 , 202

NET BO O K VA LU E AT 3 0 SEPT EM BER 2017

-

-

COST
AT 01 O CTOBER 2017

Page 100

AT 3 0 SEPT EMBE R 201 8
A MORTISATION

Dispo sals
AT 30 SEPTEMBER 2018

The Internal Control Environment (ICE) asset stated above is a bespoke Customer Relationship Management environment
built on the Salesforce platform, developed by Alpha Financial Markets Consulting UK Limited (Alpha).
The tools on ICE are essential for the delivery of Brunel’s core services and allows the efficient management of clients and
dealing services. It also assists in mitigating risks in the provision of services, as required for an FCA authorised company.
FORGING BETTER FUTURES

59

Pension Partnership

10.

LONG TERM DEBTORS

Lease Deposit*

2018

201 7

£

£

49,75 0

49,75 0

49,75 0

49,75 0

* The deposit is not expected to mature until the end of the lease on 31/07/2027

and no earlier than the break-date on 31/07/2022. Based on this, it has been reclassified
from Debtors in 2017 figures.

11.

DEBTORS

Page 101

2018

201 7

£

£

Input VAT

1 42 ,1 97

8 8 ,1 9 6

Accrued Income

1 75 , 8 94

22 ,04 4

Prepayments

20 8 , 941

-

Trade debtors*

435 ,42 1

-

9 62 , 453

1 1 0, 24 0

DUE WITHIN ONE YEAR

* Trade debtor amounts are solely due f rom related parties.

60

Annual Report & Financial Statements

30 SEPTEMBER 2018

Pension Partnership

12.

CASH AT BANK AND IN HAND

Cash at bank and in hand

13.

2018

201 7

£

£

5 , 5 0 0, 8 38

2 ,45 4 ,1 8 5

5, 50 0, 8 3 8

2 , 45 4 ,1 8 5

CREDITORS: AMOUNTS FALLING DUE WITHIN ONE YEAR

Page 102

2018

201 7

£

£

Payroll Costs

43,442

1 3 , 8 55

Output VAT

357,68 7

-

66 ,1 24

29,1 9 4

92 9, 532

4 8 9,479

1 ,78 7, 996

-

Trade Creditors

20 6 ,01 8

-

Deferred Rent

44 ,02 2

-

-

2 ,1 76 ,79 0

3 , 43 4 , 8 21

2 ,709, 3 1 8

Social Security Costs
Accruals
Deferred Revenue

Amounts due to Shareholders

FORGING BETTER FUTURES

61

Pension Partnership

14.

COST OF SALES
201 8

F RO M 1 8 J U LY TO
3 0 S E PT E M B E R 201 7

£

£

30,0 00

-

7,000

-

Custodian & Administrator Services

632 ,024

-

Fund investment advice

66 ,000

-

Data Views, Sources & Benchmarks

1 6 , 977

-

5 60, 28 4

-

1, 3 12 , 2 8 5

-

Strategic Transition Management
Research Fees

Page 103

Costs associated to Investment team activities*

* Costs associated to Investment team activities include direct salaries and an apportionment of overheads.
This amount includes staff costs of £460k, and an apportionment of Operating Lease rentals of £16k.

62

Annual Report & Financial Statements

30 SEPTEMBER 2018

Pension Partnership

15.

ADMINISTRATIVE EXPENSES
201 8

201 7

£

£

40,000

4 0,000

7, 5 00

-

Legal Fees

68 , 320

1 ,41 3 , 3 8 1

Consulting & Advisory

461 , 267

-

Operating Lease Rentals

55 , 9 6 0

1 1 , 977

Directors Emoluments

8 38 , 277

220, 8 5 6

Staff costs*

5 96 ,052

29,4 6 5

Depreciation

56,898

9 45

Amortisation

30,01 2

-

1, 324 ,707

35 8 ,777

178 ,420

9 52 , 5 8 3

3 ,657, 41 3

3 ,027, 9 8 4

Statutory Audit fees
Fee for non-audit services: Client Asset Assurance

Page 104

Other Expenses
Consulting & Advisory costs relating
to the setup of Brunel

* Brunel recognises a provision of £26,169 for annual leave accrued by employees as a result of services rendered in
the current period, and which employees are entitled to carry forward and use within the next 12 months.

The provision is measured at the salary cost payable for the period of absence.
Costs associated to Investment team activities have been classified as Cost of Sales in the Statement of Comprehensive Income.
FORGING BETTER FUTURES

63

Pension Partnership

16.

OPERATING LEASE COMMITMENTS
The Company has total future commitments in respect of non-cancellable operating lease on office space
of £317,849 (2017: £359,307), to the break date of 31/07/2022.
201 8
£
In th e n ext year (en di n g 30/0 9/ 201 9)

8 2 , 91 7

L ater than on e year an d n o t l ater th an f i ve years
(01/ 10/2019 -30/09/202 3)

23 4 , 932

TOTA L

3 1 7, 8 49

Page 105

201 7
£
In th e n ext year (en di n g 30/0 9/ 201 8)

64

41 ,45 9

L ater than on e year an d n o t l ater th an f i ve years
(01/ 10/2018-30/09/202 2 )

3 1 7, 8 49

TOTA L

35 9, 3 08

Annual Report & Financial Statements

30 SEPTEMBER 2018

Pension Partnership

17.

TRANSACTIONS WITH RELATED PARTIES
Brunel recognised a £2.2m related party cost in the previous financial period associated with the setup of the business.
The actual cost came through in 2018 financial year and offset the accrual.
During the year, Brunel reimbursed its shareholders a further £178,000 relating to development costs of the Company.
Brunel’s shareholders paid £5,363,987 (2017: £Nil) for Core Services, of which £1,787,996 was income received in advance
relating to the October – December 2018 Quarter. £440 was received in relation to an elective service delivered to one
client.
Payments of £3,568 (2017: £1,300) were made to Wiltshire Council for Payroll and HR services in the financial year,
of which £1,123 was a year end accrual.
Transactions with related parties that the directors of Brunel are associated with are as follows:

Page 106

•

Payment of Directors salaries

•

Payment of pension contributions to the Wiltshire Pension Fund for Executive Directors
Further information in note 7.

18.

CONTINGENT LIABILITY
On Brunel’s admission to the Local Government Pension Scheme (LGPS) with the Wiltshire Pension Fund,
the employees of Brunel will have the opportunity to become members of the LGPS, which is a Defined Benefit
pension scheme, and aggregate any previous pension provision.
To date, eight out of a possible 13 with previous LGPS service have opted to aggregate their benefit and the liabilities have been recognised in these financial statements.
The remaining are still within their 12-month elective period and these liabilities if aggregated will be recognised in
the financial accounts statements for the period ending September 2019.
It is impractical to estimate the financial effect of this contingent liability, as the value will be determined by the employee’s decision to aggregate their pension service. Brunel also doesn’t have access to its employees previous pension
service records and the values are not reasonably predicted by averages since tenure may vary significantly.
This uncertainty will be clarified within 12 months of the employees start date with Brunel.
Transfer Values will be paid into the Wiltshire Pension Fund from other LGPS funds on the outcome of each members
decision; at which point the liability arises, calculated by the actuary.
FORGING BETTER FUTURES

65

Pension Partnership

19.

TAXATION
201 8

FOR THE PERIOD
18 JULY TO 30 SEPTEMBER
2017

£

£

-

-

( 1 8 7, 5 43 )

(526 ,533 )

Adjustment in respect of previous periods

(2 , 26 4 )

-

Effec t of chan ges in tax rate s

19,742

55 ,424

TOTA L DEFERRED TAX

( 170,06 5 )

(47 1 ,1 09 )

To tal tax per in co m e state m e n t

( 1 70,06 5 )

(47 1 ,1 09 )

(2 1 8 ,9 6 0)

-

(218 , 9 6 0)

-

Cu rrent Tax:
DEFERRED TAX:
Origination and reversal of timing differences

Page 107

OTHER COMPREHE N S IVE I N CO M E I T EM S:
Deferred tax cu rren t year c re di t

66

Annual Report & Financial Statements

30 SEPTEMBER 2018

Pension Partnership

The tax assessed for the period is lower than the standard rate of corporation tax in the United Kingdom at 19% (2017: 19%).
The differences are explained as follows:
201 8

FOR THE PERIOD
18 JULY TO 30 SEPTEMBER
2017

£

£

Loss for the year/period before tax:

( 1 , 2 1 8 , 21 9 )

( 2 , 8 06 ,4 47)

Tax on loss at standard UK tax rate of 19% (2017: 19%):

(2 31 ,4 6 2)

( 533 , 225 )

Expenses not deductible

43,91 8

6 ,6 92

Adjustments f rom previous periods

(2 , 26 4 )

-

Tax rate changes

19,743

55 ,424

TAX CREDIT FOR THE YEAR/PERIOD

( 170,06 5 )

(47 1 ,1 09 )

TAX ON RESULTS ON ORDINARY ACTIVITIES:

( 170,06 5 )

(47 1 ,1 09 )

(47 1,1 09 )

-

(2 , 26 5 )

-

Deferred tax charge to income statement for the period

( 1 67, 8 01 )

(47 1 ,1 09 )

Deferred tax charg e i n O C I fo r th e peri o d

(2 1 8 ,9 6 0)

-

PROVISIO N AT END O F YEA R /PER I O D

(8 6 0,1 35 )

(47 1 ,1 09 )

EFFECTS OF:

Page 108

DEFERRED TAX ASSETS:
Provision at start of period
Adjustment in respect of prior years

FORGING BETTER FUTURES

67

Pension Partnership
(19.

TAXATION Continius)

BO O K E D 30 S E P 201 8

B O O K E D 3 0 S E P 201 7

£

£

Fixed as set timin g d i f fe re n ce s

(4 , 524 )

8,881

Fixed as set timin g d i f fe re n ce s - pen si o n

(7, 3 8 5 )

-

(8 4 8 , 226 )

(479, 9 9 0)

(8 6 0,1 35 )

(47 1 ,1 09 )

(860,1 35 )

(479, 9 9 0)

(8 6 0,1 35 )

(479, 9 9 0)

-

8,881

-

8,881

Lo sses

Page 109

DEFERRED TAX A SSETS:
Recoverable within 1 2 m o n th s

DEFERRED TAX LIA BI L I T I E S:
Payable within 12 m o n th s

68

Annual Report & Financial Statements

30 SEPTEMBER 2018

Pension Partnership

20.

PROVISIONS FOR OTHER LIABILITIES

Brunel has an obligation for the restoration of its office space on termination of its lease.
A provision of £90,000 for dilapidations has been recognised which represents the management’s best estimate of
the site restoration costs at the end of the lease term as outlined in note 16.
The timing of this cost is uncertain as it would only become payable on vacating the current Brunel offices,
and the earliest this cost could arise would be at the rent review date in on 31/7/2022.
S I T E RE STO RAT I O N O B L I G AT I O NS
£
As at 1 O c to ber 2017

-

Page 110

Prov ision m a de in th e year

9 0,000

A s at 30 September 2018

9 0,000

21.

PENSION COMMITMENTS

Brunel participates in the Local Government Pension Scheme (LGPS) administered by the Wiltshire Pension Fund, on
behalf of Wiltshire Council.
The LGPS is a tax approved, defined benefit occupational pension scheme set up under the Superannuation Act 1972.
The benefits under the scheme are based on the length of membership and the average salary.
Each member contributes a proportion of their salary, within a 5.5% to 12.5% range depending on their rate of pay.
Brunel, as the employing body, also contributes in to the scheme at 17.7% of the employee’s salary.
LGPS is accounted for as a defined benefits scheme.
The liabilities of the LGPS attributable to Brunel are included in the statement of Financial Position on an actuarial
basis using the projected unit method - i.e. an assessment of future payments that will be made in relation to retirement
benefits earned to date by employees, based on assumptions about mortality rates, employee turnover rates, etc. and
projections of earnings for current employees.
FORGING BETTER FUTURES

69

Pension Partnership

The schemes in the UK typically expose Brunel to actuarial risks such as: investment risk, interest rate risk,
longevity risk and salary risk as follows:

Page 111

•

Investment risk – the present value of the defined benefit schemes’ liability is calculated using
a discount rate determined by reference to high quality corporate bond yields. If the return on plan
assets is below this rate, a deficit will be created;

•

Interest risk – a decrease in the bond interest rate will increase the scheme liability but this will be
partially offset by an increase in the return of the plan’s debt instruments;

•

Longevity risk – the present value of the defined benefit plan liability is calculated by reference to
the best estimate of the mortality of the plan participants both during and after their employment.
An increase in the life expectancy of the plan participants will increase the plan’s liability; and

•

Salary risk – the present value of the defined benefit scheme liability is calculated by reference
to the future salaries of plan participants, as such, an increase in the salary of the plan participants
will increase the plan’s liability.

This is a funded scheme, meaning that Brunel and employees pay contributions into a fund, calculated at a level estimated to balance the pensions liabilities with investment assets.
Brunel joined the LGPS on inception of the Company on 18 July 2017 although the admission agreement was signed
in the financial year ended 30 September 2018.
Pension costs have been charged to the Total Comprehensive Income on the basis required by FRS 102.
This includes a one-off contribution of £1m, which was paid in the year ended 30 September 2018 as a funding shortfall
payment in line with the original capital financing plans for Brunel.
Costs for 2017 described below (£14,000) are recognised in the 2018 Financial Statements, as the admission agreement was signed in the financial year ended 30 September 2018.

70

Annual Report & Financial Statements

30 SEPTEMBER 2018

Pension Partnership

POST-EMPLOYMEN T BE NE FITS SUM M ARY

Net As sets
Net L iabilities

201 8

201 7

£

£

2 , 52 1 ,000

5 ,000

(2 , 975 ,000)

( 1 9,000)

(454 ,000)

( 1 4 ,000)

RECON CILIATION OF O PE NING AND C LOSING B AL ANC E S OF T H E D E F I N E D B E N E F I T O B L I G AT I O N

Page 112

201 8

201 7

£

£

19,000

-

391,000

15,000

8 ,000

-

124 ,000

5,000

1,133,000

-

Changes in f inancial assumptions

(82 ,000)

(1,000)

O ther Experience

1, 382 ,000

-

DEFINED BENEFIT O BL I G AT I O N
AT END OF PERIOD

2 ,975,000

19,000

Def ined benef it obligation at star t of period
Current ser vice cost
Interest expense
Contributions by plan par ticipants
Benef its paid
REMEASUREMENTS:

FORGING BETTER FUTURES

71

Pension Partnership

RECON CILIATION OF O PE NING AND C LOSING B AL ANC E S OF T H E FA I R VA LU E O F PL A N A S S E TS
201 8

201 7

£

£

Fair valu e o f plan asse ts at star t o f pe ri o d

5 ,000

-

Interest in com e

5 ,000

-

Retu rn o n plan as se ts i n exce ss o f i n tere st i n co m e

1 1 ,000

-

1 , 243 ,000

-

1 24 ,000

5 ,000

Ben ef its paid

1 ,1 33 ,000

-

FA IR VA LUE OF PL A N A S SETS AT E N D O F PER I O D

2 , 52 1 ,000

5 ,000

Co ntribu tio ns f rom th e em pl oyer

Page 113

Co ntribu tio ns f rom e m pl oyee s

The actual return on plan assets over the period ending 30 September 2018 was 8.8%.

72

Annual Report & Financial Statements

30 SEPTEMBER 2018

Pension Partnership

D EF IN ED BEN EFIT COSTS RECOGNISE D IN STAT E M E NT OF CO M PR E H E N S IVE I N CO M E

g ain/( los s )

201 8

201 7

£

£

Return on plan assets
(excluding amounts included in net interest cost)

1 1 ,000

-

Experience gains and losses on the plan liabilities

( 1 , 3 8 2 ,000)

-

8 2 ,000

1 ,000

( 1 , 2 8 9,000)

1 ,000

Effects of changes in the demographic and financial
assumptions underlying the present value of the plan liabilities

Page 114

TOTAL AMOUNT RECOGNISED IN OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

The cost recognised in the statement of Other Comprehensive Income for 2018 is £1,288,000 which includes total cost
of £1.289m for 2018 and a gain of £1,000 for 2017.
A SS ETS
Assets in the Wiltshire Pension Fund are valued at a fair value, principally market value for investments and
consists of the following categories, by proportion:
2018

201 7

%

%

Equ ities

71%

71%

Bo n ds

14%

1 4%

Pro per ty

1 3%

1 3%

Cash

2%

2%

10 0 %

1 00%

TOTA L A SSETS

None of the fair values of the assets shown above include any of the Company's own financial instruments or any property
occupied by, or other assets used by the Company.
FORGING BETTER FUTURES

73

Pension Partnership

A SS UMPTION S
3 0 SEP 2018

3 0 S e p 201 7

1 8 J U L 201 7

% pa .

% pa.

% pa.

Discount rate

2 . 9%

2 . 8%

2 .7 %

Salary increase rate

3.0 %

3 .0%

3 .0%

Pension Increase Rate (CPI)

2 .4%

2 .4%

2 .4%

MALES

F E M AL E S

Current Pensioners

2 2 . 5 years

24 . 9 yea rs

Future Pensioners *

24 .1 yea rs

26 .7 years

AVERAGE LIFE EXPECTA N C I E S

Page 115

* Figures assume members aged 45 as at the last formal valuation date.
SE N S ITIVITY AN ALYS IS
The sensitivities regarding the principal assumptions used to measure the scheme liabilities are set out below:
C HA NGE IN A SSUMPT I O N S
AT 30 SEPTEMBER 2018 :

74

APPROXIMATE % INCREASE TO
DEFINED BENEFIT OBLIGATION

APPROXIMATE
MONETARY AMOUNT £

0.5% decrease in Real Discount Rate

1 4%

43 0,000

0.5% increase in the Salary Increase Rate

4%

1 1 0,000

0.5% increase in the Pension Increase Rate (CPI)

10%

3 1 2 ,000

Annual Report & Financial Statements

30 SEPTEMBER 2018

Pension Partnership

22.

CALLED UP SHARE CAPITAL
201 8

201 7

20

10

20

10

Au th oris ed, allo tted an d f ul l y pai d:
20 o rdinar y shares o f £ 1 ea ch

Shares issued during the year have full rights in the Company with respect to voting, dividends and distributions.
During the year, 10 ordinary shares of £1 each were issued at £540,000 per share.

Page 116

ORDINA RY SHA RES

201 8
NUMBER

23.

At 01 O c to ber 2017

10

S hare issue

10

AT 31 O CTOBER 2018

20

RESERVES
Called-up share capital represents the nominal value of shares that have been issued. Share premium account
includes any premiums received on issue of share capital. Retained earnings includes all current and prior period
retained losses.

24.

POST BALANCE SHEET EVENTS
There are no known Post Balance Sheet Events at the point of publication.
FORGING BETTER FUTURES

75

EMAIL
info@brunelpp.org

www.brunelpensionpartnership.org

Page 117

BY POST
Brunel Pension Partnership Ltd

FOLLOW US

101 Victoria Street, Bristol, BS1 6PU

@BrunelPP

Page 118

Agenda Item 8

Page 119

Page 120

Page 121

Page 122

Page 123

Page 124

Page 125

Page 126

Page 127

Page 128

Page 129

Page 130

Page 131

Page 132

Gloucestershire County Council Pension Fund
Performance Report - Q4 to 31st December 2018
Performance by Manager vs Benchmark and Performance Target
Market Value Market Value 3 Months to 31-Dec-18 Total
Return
30.09.18
31.12.18

Page 133

Manager

Mandate

£000's

£000's

Aberdeen Standard
Aberdeen Standard - GARS
Blackrock Emerging Markets
Blackrock Global
Brunel - Fundrock
Brunel PP - LGIM
Brunel PP - LGIM
Brunel PP - LGIM
Brunel PP - LGIM
WAMCO
WAMCO GMS
Hermes
CBREI - GMM
Golub
Blue Bay
Yorkshire Fund Managers/TVP
Brunel - PM
In-house Cash
Fund Manager Cash
Gloucestershire CC Total

UK Equity*
Global Absolute Return
Emerging Markets Passive
Global Equities
UK Active Equity**
Low Carbon Equities***
Passive Developed Equities (Unhdg)***
Passive Developed Equities (Hdg)***
Smart Beta***
Global Fixed Interest
Global Multi Strategy FI
UK Property
Global Property
Private Debt
Private Debt
Venture Capital
Private Equity/Infrastructure
Cash
Cash

419,827
76,669
140,162
492,148
51,915
130,743
128,779
219,163
302,509
176,795
138,327
60,100
11,503
14,800
5,584
4,978
38
2,374,040

75,219
132,891
431,158
333,557
46,080
116,104
111,531
199,606
329,793
174,932
139,735
60,995
11,778
18,286
4,863
8,941
3,206
2,198,675

* Performance to 20/11/2018 (transition of assets to Brunel PP UK active equity mandate)
** Performance available from 21/11/2018 - 31/12/2018 (Brunel UK active equity mandate)
*** Performance available from 11/07/2018 - 31/12/2018 (Brunel passive equity mandate)

1 Year to 31-Dec-18 Total
Return

3 Years to 31-Dec-18
Annualised Return

Since Inception to 31-Dec-18
Annualised Return

Actual
Actual
Benchmark
Actual
Benchmark
Actual
Benchmark %
Benchmark %
Performance %
Performance %
%
Performance %
%
Performance %
-8.3
-2.0
-5.2
-12.4
N/A
-11.2
-11.2
-13.4
-8.9
-0.4
-1.1
1.0
1.5
4.9
4.2
-13.5
N/A
N/A
N/A
-7.3

-10.5
1.5
-5.3
-10.7
N/A
-11.2
-11.2
-13.4
-8.8
1.2
0.7
1.3
1.1
1.5
1.5
N/A
N/A
N/A
N/A
-5.8

-8.8
-5.5
-9.4
-5.9
N/A
N/A
N/A
N/A
N/A
-3.2
-5.5
8.1
8.7
17.5
7.5
-7.1
N/A
N/A
N/A
-5.0

-9.6
6.0
-9.3
-3.8
N/A
N/A
N/A
N/A
N/A
-0.7
2.8
7.4
7.0
5.8
5.8
N/A
N/A
N/A
N/A
-2.2

3.5
-1.5
15.4
12.3
N/A
N/A
N/A
N/A
N/A
5.8
4.2
8.5
6.7
N/A
N/A
N/A
N/A
N/A
N/A
8.0

5.2
5.7
14.7
11.9
N/A
N/A
N/A
N/A
N/A
6.2
2.5
7.2
7.3
N/A
N/A
N/A
N/A
N/A
N/A
9.1

6.0
2.3
6.5
9.4
-3.3
-8.2
-8.1
-11.2
-7.2
6.0
2.9
6.9
9.2
11.1
7.5
N/A
N/A
N/A
N/A
7.2

6.4
5.7
6.2
8.9
-3.1
-8.1
-8.1
-11.1
-7.0
6.5
2.6
5.2
8.6
5.7
5.7
N/A
N/A
N/A
N/A
7.8

This page is intentionally left blank

By virtue of paragraph(s) 1, 3, 7a of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.

Document is Restricted

Page 135

Agenda Item 10

This page is intentionally left blank

By virtue of paragraph(s) 1, 3, 7a of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.

Document is Restricted

Page 143

Agenda Item 11

This page is intentionally left blank

